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INTRODUCTION 

The Technical Services Department of the Institute has updated the compilation of various 

auditor’s report formats, last issued in June 2018. This updated version covers the following 

broad categories of audit, assurance and review reports: 

 

 Issued by ICAP through its Technical Release and Circulars; 

 Specified under various laws and regulations; 

 Provided in the IAASB issued ‘2020 Handbook of International Quality Control, Auditing, 

Review, Other Assurance, and Related Services Pronouncements’ (herein referred as IAASB 

2020 Handbook). 

 

The revised compilation includes auditor’s review report on Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations, 2019, review report on statement of net capital balance, and audit report formats 
provided in various International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan, including 
ISA 510, ISA 570 and ISA 600. 
 

The publication aims to facilitate members by providing an easy and quick reference of different 

audit, assurance and other forms of reports. This publication is for member’s general guidance 

only and will be updated from time to time. 

 

We hope that members will find this compilation helpful. 

 

 
 
 
 
Rana Muhammad Usman Khan      Sohail Akram Malik 
Chairman Auditing Standards and Ethics Committee    Director Technical Services 
 
 

DISCLAIMER 
 

All reasonable care has been taken in the compilation of the various audit, assurance and review report 
formats extracted from ICAP circulars, local laws, regulations and ISAs.  
 
This publication does not override the formats of auditor reports issued by the Institute or specified in the 

laws and regulations or provided in the ISAs, the text of which alone are authoritative. This publication 

should not be considered as substitute of the relevant laws, regulations, ISAs and Institute circulars and 

technical releases. The auditor’s report included in this document are also not all-inclusive. Judgment should 

be used by a reader and user of this publication in order to use the report formats considering the relevant 

and specific facts, circumstances and nature of engagement(s).  

 

The Institute, Auditing Standards and Ethics Committee and Institute’s staff do not accept any liability to 
any party for any loss, damage or costs howsoever arising, whether directly or indirectly, from any action 
or decision taken (or not taken) as a result of any person relying on or otherwise using this publication or 
arising due to omission from it.  
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REPORT FORMATS ISSUED BY ICAP  
 



 

 

SECTION 1 
 

REPORT FORMATS ISSUED THROUGH ICAP CIRCULARS 
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Review Report on Statement of Net Capital Balance 

REVIEW REPORT ON STATEMENT OF NET CAPITAL BALANCE 
(issued through ICAP Circular No. 12/2020) 

 

To the Chief Executive Officer of [_________ (the Securities Broker)]  

Introduction  

We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Net Capital Balance of -------------- (the 
Securities Broker) as at ………… and notes to the Statement of Net Capital Balance (here-in-after 
referred to as the ‘the statement’). Management is responsible for the preparation of the 
statement in accordance with the requirements of the Second Schedule of the Securities Brokers 
(Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 (the Regulations) issued by the Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the 
statement based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity’ which applies to review of historical financial information performed by the independent 
auditor of the Securities Broker. A review of historical financial information consists of making 
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying 
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 
conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and consequently does 
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  

Basis for Modified Conclusion/ Disclaimer of conclusion 

(Applicable in case of modified conclusion/ disclaimer of conclusion in accordance with ISRE 2410) 

Conclusion1  

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying statement is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the 
requirements of Second Schedule of the Regulations.  

Other Matter – Restriction on Distribution and Use  

Our report is intended solely for -------------- (the Securities Broker), SECP, Pakistan Stock 
Exchange and National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited and should not be distributed to 
any other parties. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

[Name of engagement partner]  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date]  

 

Note: 

1 In case of modification, conclusion section be amended in accordance with the requirements of 
ISRE 2410.
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Auditor’s Report to The Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee 

AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES/ BOARD OF GOVERNORS / MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

(Auditing Technical Release (ATR 17) issued through ICAP Circular No. 11/2017) 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report to the *Trustees / Board of Governors / Management 
Committee / other as appropriate of *Trust/Society/ other as appropriate 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of …………*(Trust/Society/other as appropriate), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at …………, and the **statement of comprehensive 
income/ income and expenditure account, **statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of ……………… as at …………………, and (of) 
its financial performance and **its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
***approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Other Information (if any) 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements  

The *(Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee/ other as appropriate) are/is 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the ***approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such 
internal control as the *(Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee/other as 
appropriate) determine(s) is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, *(Trustees/Board of Governors/Management 
Committee/other as appropriate) are/is responsible for assessing the *(Trust’s/Society’s /other 
as appropriate) ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Illustration 1: Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of a welfare entity prepared in 

accordance with the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
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Auditor’s Report to The Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the *(Trust/Society/other as 
appropriate) financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the *(Trust’s/Society’s/other as appropriate) internal 
control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
*(Trust’s/Society’s/other as appropriate) ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the *(Trust’s/Society’s/other as appropriate) to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

[Auditor's signature]  

[Date of the auditor's report]  

[Place of signing]  

[Name of the engagement partner]  
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Auditor’s Report to The Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee 

* Select whichever is applicable 

** Mention whichever is applicable or other statement as per the applicable approved accounting 
and reporting standards  

*** Approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan include: 

1. International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified by the SECP; or 

2. International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for 
SMEs) issued by IASB as notified by the SECP; or 

3. Accounting and Financial Reporting Standard for Small-sized Entities (AFRS for SSEs) issued 
by the ICAP in 2006; or 

4. Revised Accounting and Financial Reporting Standard for Small-sized Entities (AFRS for SSEs) 
issued by the ICAP in 2015; and 

5. Accounting Standard for Not for Profit Organisations (NPOs) issued by the ICAP. 

Note 1: In case of modified opinion, please refer to ISA 705 (revised), Modifications to the Opinion 
in the Independent Auditor’s Report.   
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Auditor’s Report to The Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report to the *Trustees/Board of Governors/Management 
Committee/other as appropriate of the *Trust/Society/other as appropriate 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statement of .......*(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) which 
comprise the statement of **cash receipts and disbursements/ cash receipts and expenditure 
(here-in-after referred to as the financial statement) for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statement of the .......*(Trust/Society/other as 
appropriate) is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with **(cash receipts and 
disbursements / cash receipts and expenditure) basis of accounting described in note X to the 
financial statement. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any) 

Other Information (if any) 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statement  

The *(Trustees/ Board of Governors/ Management Committee/other as appropriate) are/is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statement in accordance with **(cash receipts 
and disbursements / cash receipts and expenditure) basis of accounting described in note X to 
the financial statement, and for such internal control as the *(Trustees/Board of 
Governors/Management Committee/other as appropriate) determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of the financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statement, *(Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee/ 
other as appropriate) are/is responsible for assessing the *(Trust’s/Society’s/other as 
appropriate) ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless *(Trustees/Board of 
Governors/Management Committee/other as appropriate) either intends to liquidate the 
*(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the *(Trust/Society/other as 
appropriate) financial reporting process. 

  

Illustration 2: Auditor’s Report on financial statement of a welfare entity prepared in 
accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements / cash receipts and expenditure basis 
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Auditor’s Report to The Trustees/Board of Governors/Management Committee 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of *(Trustees/Board of Governors/Management 
Committee/ other as appropriate) use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the *(Trust/Society/other as appropriate) 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Auditor's signature] 

[Date of the auditor's report] 

[Place of signing] 

[Name of the engagement partner]  

*Select whichever is applicable 

**Select whichever is applicable 

Note 1: In case of modified opinion, please refer to ISA 705 (revised), Modifications to the Opinion 
in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Independent Assurance Report on Sustainability 

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON SUSTAINABILITY 
(issued through ICAP Circular No. 01/2017 dated January 31, 2017) 

To the Board of Directors of [ ____________ Company] 

1. Introduction 

We have undertaken a limited assurance engagement on the Sustainability Report of 
………………………… (the Company) for the year ended ………………………… prepared by the Board 
of Directors/ management of the Company. 

2. Criteria 

The criteria used by the company to prepare the Sustainability Report is (identify 
framework/basis of preparation), as described on page X of the Sustainability Report (the 
Criteria). 

3. Management’s responsibility 

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of the Sustainability Report 
in accordance with the Criteria. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of the Sustainability Report that 
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4. Limitations 

(Refer note 1) 

5. Our independence and quality control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of 
Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional 
competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior.  

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 “Quality Control for firms that 
perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality 
control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical 
requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

6. Our responsibility and summary of work performed 

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the Sustainability Report 
based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained. We 
conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000, ‘Assurance Engagements other than audits or reviews of 
historical financial statements’ issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards 
Board. This standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain limited 
assurance about whether the Sustainability Report is free from material misstatement.  

A limited assurance engagement involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of 
Company’s use of the Criteria as the basis for the preparation of the Sustainability Report, 
assessing the risks of material misstatement of the Report whether due to fraud or error, 
responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances, and evaluating the overall 
presentation of the Report. A limited assurance engagement is substantially less in scope 
than a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to both the risk assessment procedures, 
including an understanding of internal control, and the procedures performed in response to 
the assessed risks. 

http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
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The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing 
from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement; and consequently, 
the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower 
than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement 
been performed. Accordingly, the procedures selected were based on our professional 
judgement. Within the scope of our work, we performed amongst other the following 
procedures: (these are the suggested work performed that may be modified and other 
procedures added as performed and relevant for the respective engagement conditions). 
(Refer note 2) 

7. Description of the matter(s) giving rise to the exceptions (if any) (Refer note 3) 

a) _______________________________; 

b) _______________________________; [insert exceptions, if any] 

8. Limited assurance conclusion 

Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in 
this report. We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our limited assurance conclusion. 

Based on our limited assurance engagement, nothing has come to our attention (except for 
the effect of the matters reported in the paragraph above), that causes us to believe that 
the Sustainability Report is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the 
Criteria. 

9. Restriction on distribution 

(Refer note 4) 

 

Date: __________ Signature 

Chartered Accountants 

[Place / City] ________________________________ 

 Assurance Engagement Partner 

 

Notes: 

Note 1: If the engagement was subject to any limitations, reference should be made accordingly. 
The limitations may be that the assurance scope excludes:  

 Aspects of the Report other than those mentioned;  

 Data and information outside the defined reporting period (July1 2016 to June 30 2017);  

 The Company's statements that describe expression of opinion, belief, aspiration, expectation, 
aim or future intention and national or global socio-economic and environmental aspects;  

 Data and information on economic and financial performance of the Company, which, we are 
informed, are from the Company's audited financial records. 
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Independent Assurance Report on Sustainability 

Note 2: Procedures will depend upon the auditor's judgment and may vary with the scope of work. 
Following procedures may be relevant for the engagement: 

 Interview selected key senior personnel of the Company to understand the current processes in 
place for capturing sustainability performance data, the Company’s sustainability goals and the 
progress made during the reporting period; 

 Review the Company’s approach to stakeholder engagement and processes for determining 
material issues through interviews and review of associated documents; 

 Review relevant documents and systems for gathering, analyzing and aggregating sustainability 
performance data in the reporting period; 

 Review of major anomaly within the report as well as between the report and source 
data/information; 

 Verification of the transcription of data internally verified by the Company; 

 Execution of audit trail of selected data streams and information to determine the level of 
accuracy in collection, transcription and aggregation processes followed; 

 Review of the reliability of the information, assessing related controls and their operating 
effectiveness; 

 Review of the Company’s plans, policies and practices, pertaining to their social, environmental 
and sustainable development; 

 Performance of site visits as part of the inspection of processes for collecting, analyzing, 
validation and aggregation of sustainability data and their documentation on a sample basis. 

Note 3: Include when it is applicable. 

Note 4: Where applicable, use the wording of paragraph 69(f) of revised ISAE 3000 which states that: 
‘when the applicable criteria are designed for a specific purpose, a statement alerting readers to 
this fact and that, as a result, the subject matter information may not be suitable for another 
purpose’.
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REPORT FORMATS SPECIFIED UNDER 

VARIOUS LAWS AND REGULATIONS 



 

 

SECTION 2 
 

AUDITORS (REPORTING OBLIGATIONS) REGULATIONS, 2018
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Company  

  Annexure-I 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
[See Regulation 3] 

To the members of ………… (name of Company)  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements (or revised financial statements, if 
applicable)i of ……… (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
........., and the statement of profit or loss ii and other comprehensive income or the income 
and expenditure statement, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all 
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary 
for the purposes of the audit.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
or the income or expenditure statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement 
of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company's affairs as at ................... and of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income or loss, or the surplus or deficit iii, the changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan / Institute of Cost and management Accountants (the Code)iv 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Key Audit Matter(s)v 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the Key audit matter(s):vi 

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit 
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Company  

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)]  

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Company  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements vii 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income or the income and expenditure account, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account 
and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company’s business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 
7 of that Ordinance viii. 

Other Matter(s)  

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor ix 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature] 

[Place/ location]  

[Date] 
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Company  

Notes: 

I Where due to events occurring after the issuance of audit report an audit report is required to 
be revised, this fact along with specific justification and impact shall be conspicuously stated in 
the title and text of the report. For this, the following paragraph shall be included in an Emphasis 
of Matter Paragraph or Other Matter paragraph. 

Reasons for Revision of Financial Statements and the Audit Report (If Applicable) 

We have issued the previous Audit Report to the members for audit of the financial 
statements for the year ended …………. on ----------. The previous Audit Report was 
unqualified. Those financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on -------. 
Subsequent to issuing of the audit report, material changes in the reported value of------
were discovered due to which the reported amount of --------- and the profit is reduced/ 
increased by Rs. -------. As a result, the financial statements were revised and the Board of 
Directors approved it on --------.  

ii  Wherever applicable, substitute “income and expenditure statement” and “surplus or deficit” in 
case of association not for profit.  

iii  As the case may be, use either profit or loss, similarly either other comprehensive income or loss 
and surplus (in case of income and expenditure account only).  

iv  To use the name of the relevant Institute.  

v  In the case of a non-listed company the section of key audit matter(s) in the report and the 
related last two paragraphs in the auditor’s responsibilities section may be omitted.  

vi  In case there is no KAM following wording may be used:  

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.  

vii  With Reference to explanation of Section 249(3) and Section 249(4) of the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017):  

 Where any of the matters referred in the Auditor's Report is answered in negative or with a 
qualification the report shall state the reasons for such answers along with the factual 
position to the best of auditor's information.  

 Where the auditor’s report contains a reference to any other report, statement or remarks 
which they have made on the financial statements examined by them, such statement or 
remarks shall be annexed to the auditor’s report and shall be deemed to be a part of the 
auditor’s report.  

viii  Where no Zakat is deductible, substitute “no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  

ix  The paragraph is not required in cases where the auditor of the Company is same in the previous 
year.  

Additional Notes:  

I. Omit that component of financial statements which is not applicable in case of a particular 
company.  

II. Terms “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” or “statement of 
comprehensive income” can be used interchangeably.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Banking Company 

  Annexure-II 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

[See Regulation 3] 

To the members of …………… (name of Banking Company)  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements (or revised financial statements, if 
applicable)i of …….(the Bank), which comprise the statement of financial position as at ........., 
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or the statement of 
comprehensive income the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the branches except 
for ...................branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive or the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies 
Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank’s affairs as at ................... and 
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income or loss or the comprehensive income ii, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable) 

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Key Audit Matter(s)iii  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s)iv: 

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit 

1.   

2.   
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Banking Company 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)] 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the 
requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements v  

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank/branches as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found 
adequate for the purpose of our audit;  

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income or the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows (together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and 
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;  

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in 
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank/ branches and the transactions of the 
Bank/ branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank/ 
branches; and  

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 
of that Ordinance vi.  

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the 
total loans and advances of the Bank. 

Other Matter(s) 

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor vii 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date] 
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Banking Company 

Notes: 

I  Where due to events occurring after the issuance of audit report an audit report is required to 
be revised, this fact along with specific justification and impact shall be conspicuously stated in 
the title and text of the report. For this, the following paragraph shall be included in an Emphasis 
of Matter Paragraph or Other Matter paragraph (refer para 12(b) of ISA 560 ‘Subsequent Events’). 

Reasons for Revision of Financial Statements and the Audit Report (If Applicable) 

We have issued the previous Audit Report to the members for audit of the financial 
statements for the year ended …….. on ----------. The previous Audit Report was unqualified. 
Those financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on-------. Subsequent 
to issuing of the audit report, material changes in the reported value of------were 
discovered due to which the reported amount of ---------and the profit is reduced/ increased 
by Rs. -------. As a result, the financial statements were revised and the Board of Directors 
approved it on --------.  

ii  As the case may be, use either profit or loss, similarly either other comprehensive income or loss.  

iii  In the case of a non-listed bank the section of key audit matter(s) in the report and the related 
last two paragraphs in the auditor’s responsibilities section may be omitted.  

iv  In case there is no KAM following wording may be used:  

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.  

v  With Reference to explanation of Section 249(3) and Section 249(4) of the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017):  

 Where any of the matters referred in the Auditor's Report is answered in negative or with a 
qualification the report shall state the reasons for such answers along with the factual 
position to the best of auditor's information.  

 Where the auditor’s report contains a reference to any other report, statement or remarks 
which they have made on the financial statements examined by them, such statement or 
remarks shall be annexed to the auditor’s report and shall be deemed to be a part of the 
auditor’s report.  

vi  Where no Zakat is deductible, substitute “no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  

vii  The paragraph is not required in cases where the auditor of the Bank is same in the previous year.  

Additional Notes: 

I. Omit the component of financial statements which is not applicable in case of a particular bank 
in accordance with applicable financial reporting framework. 

II. Terms “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” or “statement of 
comprehensive income” can be used interchangeably.
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Report on the Audit of Regulatory Returns of General Insurance Company 

Annexure III 
 

 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
[Refer Regulation 3] 

To the Board of Directors of ………… [name of General Insurance Company]  

Report on the Audit of Regulatory Returns  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying regulatory returns of -------------- (the Company) which 
comprise the balance sheet as at ........., and the profit and loss account, the statement of cash 
flows, the statement of premiums, the statement of claims, the statement of expenses, the 
statement of investment income, the statement of claims analysis, the statement of exposures, 
the statement of solvency and the classified summary of assets in Pakistan for the year then 
ended together with the notes forming part thereof, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion the regulatory returns present fairly the state of affairs of the Company as at 
December 31, 20XX and the result of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with 
the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000), the Insurance Rules, 2017 and 
the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Regulatory returns section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on distribution and use 

We draw attention to Note X to the regulatory returns, which describes the basis of accounting. 
The regulatory returns are prepared to meet the requirements of section 46 (1) of the Insurance 
Ordinance 2000. As a result, the regulatory returns may not be suitable for another purpose. Our 
report is intended solely for ---------------- (Company name) and Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and should not be distributed to parties other than ……………… 
(Company) or SECP. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable) 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Regulatory returns  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the regulatory returns in 
accordance with requirements of the Insurance Ordinance 2000 (XXXIX of 2000), the Insurance 
Rules, 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of regulatory returns that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the regulatory returns, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Regulatory Returns  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the regulatory returns as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these regulatory 
returns.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the regulatory returns, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the regulatory 
returns or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the regulatory returns, including 
the disclosures, and whether the regulatory returns represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. (This paragraph is only applicable to listed company audit)  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:  

(a) the accompanying regulatory returns accurately reflect the books and records of the 
Company;  
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(b) the Company has maintained proper books and records; and  

(c) the regulatory returns have been prepared in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance 2000 
(XXXIX of 2000), the Insurance Rules 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations 2017.  

Other Matter  

The Company has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 20XX in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
and the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance 2000 and Companies Act 2017 on which we 
issued a separate auditor’s report to the members of the Company dated ----------------.  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date] 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
[Refer Regulation 3] 

To the members of …………. (Name of General Insurance Company)  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements (or revised financial statements, if 
applicable)i of ……… (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
........., and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and 
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, 
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of 
Company’s affairs as at ................... and of the profit or loss, total comprehensive income or 
loss ii, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Key Audit Matter(s)iii 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Following are the Key audit matter(s)iv: 

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit 

   

   

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)]  
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements v 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:  

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance 
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 
(XXI of 2017), and are in agreement with the books of account;  

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the company’s business; and;  

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 
7 of that Ordinance vi. 

Other Matter(s) 

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor vii  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date]  
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Notes: 

i  Where due to events occurring after the issuance of audit report an audit report is required to 
be revised, this fact along with specific justification and impact shall be conspicuously stated in 
the title and text of the report. For this, the following paragraph shall be included in an Emphasis 
of Matter Paragraph or Other Matter paragraph.  

Reasons for Revision of Financial Statements and the Audit Report (If Applicable)  

We have issued the previous Audit Report to the members for audit of the financial 
statements for the year ended …….. on ----------. The previous Audit Report was unqualified. 
Those financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on-------. Subsequent 
to issuing of the audit report, material changes in the reported value of------were 
discovered due to which the reported amount of ---------and the profit is reduced/ increased 
by Rs. -------. As a result, the financial statements were revised and the Board of Directors 
approved it on --------.  

ii As the case may be, use either profit or loss, similarly either comprehensive income or loss.  

iii  In the case of a non-listed company the section of key audit matter(s) in the report and the 
related last two paragraphs in the auditor’s responsibilities section may be omitted.  

iv  In case there is no KAM following wording may be used:  

‘We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.’  

v  With Reference to explanation of Section 249 (3), Section 249 (4) of the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), and section 48(2) of the Insurance Ordinance 2000:  

 Where any of the matters referred in the Auditor's Report is answered in negative or with a 
qualification the report shall state the reasons for such answers along with the factual 
position to the best of auditor's information.  

 Where the auditor’s report contains a reference to any other report, statement or remarks 
which they have made on the financial statements examined by them, such statement or 
remarks shall be annexed to the auditor’s report and shall be deemed to be a part of the 
auditor’s report.  

vi  Where no Zakat is deductible, substitute “no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  

vii  The paragraph is not required in cases where the auditor of the Company is same in the previous 
year. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
(See Regulation 3) 

To the Board of Directors of ………… [name of Life Insurance Company]  

Report on the Audit of Regulatory Returns  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying regulatory returns of -------------- (the Company) which 
comprise the balance sheet as at ........., and the profit and loss account, the statement of cash 
flows, the revenue account, the statement of premiums, the statement of claims, the statement 
of expenses, the statement of investment income, the statement of solvency, the classified 
summary of assets in Pakistan, the statement of maximum management expense limits and the 
statement of itemized computation of bancassurance acquisition cost (if applicable) for the year 
then ended together with the notes forming part thereof, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion the regulatory returns present fairly the state of affairs of the Company as at 
December 31, 20XX and the result of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with 
the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000), the Insurance Rules, 2017 and 
the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Regulatory returns section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on distribution and use 

We draw attention to Note X to the regulatory returns, which describes the basis of accounting. 
The regulatory returns are prepared to meet the requirements of section 46 (1) of the Insurance 
Ordinance 2000. As a result, the regulatory returns may not be suitable for another purpose. Our 
report is intended solely for ---------------- (Company name) and Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and should not be distributed to parties other than ………………… 
(Company) or SECP. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable) 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Regulatory returns 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the regulatory returns in 
accordance with requirements of the Insurance Ordinance 2000, (XXXIX of 2000) the Insurance 
Rules, 2017 and the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of regulatory returns that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the regulatory returns, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Regulatory returns 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the regulatory returns as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these regulatory 
returns. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the regulatory returns, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the regulatory 
returns or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the regulatory returns, including 
the disclosures, and whether the regulatory returns represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. (This paragraph is only applicable to listed company audit) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

(a) the accompanying regulatory returns accurately reflect the books and records of the 
Company; 

(b) the Company has maintained proper books and records; 
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(c) the apportionment required to be performed under section 17 of the Insurance Ordinance 
2000 has been performed in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary; and 

(d) the regulatory returns have been prepared in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance 2000 
(XXXIX of 2000), the Insurance Rules 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations 2017. 

Other Matter 

The Company has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 20XX in accordance with accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements 
of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Companies Act, 2017 on which we issued a separate 
auditor’s report to the members of the Company dated ----------------. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date]
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(See Regulation 3) 

 

To the members of …………. (Name of Life Insurance Company)  

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

 

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements (or revised financial statements, if 
applicable)i of ……… (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
........., and the statement of comprehensive income , the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and 
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof 
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of 
Company’s affairs as at ................... and of the profit or loss, total comprehensive income or 
lossii, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Key Audit Matter(s)iii  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Following are the Key audit matter(s)iv: 

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)]  

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements v  

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:  

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance 
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);  

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), and are in agreement with the books of account;  

c) the apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses between two or more funds 
has been performed in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary; 

d) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the company’s business; and;  

e) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 
7 of that Ordinance v. 

Other Matter(s)  

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor vi  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date]
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Notes: 

i  Where due to events occurring after the issuance of audit report an audit report is required to 
be revised, this fact along with specific justification and impact shall be conspicuously stated in 
the title and text of the report. For this, the following paragraph shall be included in an Emphasis 
of Matter Paragraph or Other Matter paragraph.  

Reasons for Revision of Financial Statements and the Audit Report (If Applicable)  

We have issued the previous Audit Report to the members for audit of the financial 
statements for the year ended ………. on ----------. The previous Audit Report was 
unqualified. Those financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on-------. 
Subsequent to issuing of the audit report, material changes in the reported value of------
were discovered due to which the reported amount of ---------and the profit is reduced/ 
increased by Rs. -------. As a result, the financial statements were revised and the Board of 
Directors approved it on --------.  

ii  As the case may be, use either profit or loss, similarly either comprehensive income or loss.  

iii  In the case of a non-listed company the section of key audit matter(s) in the report and the 
related last two paragraphs in the auditor’s responsibilities section may be omitted.  

iv  In case there is no KAM following wording may be used:  

‘We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.’  

v  With reference to explanation of Section 249 (3), Section 249 (4) of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017) and section 48(2) of the Insurance Ordinance 2000:  

 Where any of the matters referred in the Auditor's Report is answered in negative or with a 
qualification the report shall state the reasons for such answers along with the factual 
position to the best of auditor's information.  

 Where the auditor’s report contains a reference to any other report, statement or remarks 
which they have made on the financial statements examined by them, such statement or 
remarks shall be annexed to the auditor’s report and shall be deemed to be a part of the 
auditor’s report.  

vi  The paragraph is not required in cases where the auditor of the Company is same in the previous year.
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  Annexure-IV 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(See Regulation 4] 

To the members of …………… (name of Holding Company)  

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements (or revised consolidated 
financial statements, if applicable)i of …………… and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise 
the consolidated statement of financial position as at ........., and the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss ii and other comprehensive income or the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at ……., and (of) its consolidated financial performance and 
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute 
of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan / The Institute of Cost and Management Accountants 
of Pakistan iii (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern (if applicable)  

Emphasis of Matter (if any)  

Key Audit Matter(s)iv 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters.  

Following are the Key audit matter(s): v 

S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit 

   

   

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)]   



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 38 of 233 

 

Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements of Holding Company  

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable 
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.  

Other Matters  

Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor vi  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date] 

 

Notes: 

i  Where due to events occurring after the issuance of audit report an audit report is required to 
be revised, this fact along with specific justification and impact shall be conspicuously stated in 
the title and text of the report. For this, the following paragraph shall be included in an Emphasis 
of Matter Paragraph or Other Matter paragraph.  

Reasons for Revision of the consolidated Financial Statements and the Audit 
Report (If Applicable)  

We have issued the previous Audit Report to the members for audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended ………. on ----------. The 
previous Audit Report was unqualified. Those consolidated financial statements 
were approved by the Board of Directors on-------. Subsequent to issuing of the audit 
report, material changes in the reported value of------were discovered due to which 
the reported amount of ---------and the profit is reduced/ increased by Rs. -------. 
As a result, the consolidated financial statements were revised and the Board of 
Directors approved it on --------.  

ii  Substitute “income and expenditure account” and “surplus or deficit” in case of association not 
for profit.  

iii  To use the name of the relevant institute.  
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iv  In the case of a non-listed Holding company, the section of key audit matter(s) in the report and 
the related last two paragraphs in the auditor’s responsibilities section may be omitted.  

v  In case there is no KAM following wording may be used:  

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.  

vi  The paragraph is not required in cases where the auditor of the Holding Company is same in the 
previous year.  

Additional Notes:  

I. Omit the component of financial statements which is not applicable in case of a particular 
company in accordance with applicable financial reporting framework.  

II. Terms “consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” or 
“consolidated statement of comprehensive income” can be used interchangeably.  

III. With reference to explanation of Section 249 (3) and Section 249 (4) of the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017):  

 Where any of the matters referred in the Auditor's Report is answered in negative or with a 
qualification the report shall state the reasons for such answers along with the factual 
position to the best of auditor's information.  

 Where the auditor’s report contains a reference to any other report, statement or remarks 
which they have made on the financial statements examined by them, such statement or 
remarks shall be annexed to the auditor’s report and shall be deemed to be a part of the 
auditor’s report.  
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                          Annexure-V 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 

(refer Regulation 5) 

To the members of …………… (name of company)  

Report on Review of Interim Financial Statements  

Introduction  

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of 
……………… as at …………… and the related condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of changes in equity, and condensed 
interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-month period 
then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial statements”). Management is 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim financial statements in 
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim 
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial statements 
based on our review.  

Scope of Review  

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity”. A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other 
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  

Conclusion  

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying interim financial statements is not prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim 
financial reporting.  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature]  

[Place/ location]  

[Date]  

Note: 

*Where the auditor has not reviewed the figures of the condensed interim profit and loss account 
and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the three months period ended, 
this fact should be mentioned in the review report.    
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  Annexure VI 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 
(see Regulation 6) 

(changes notified through SECP S.R.O. 269 (I)/2020 dated March 30, 2020) 

To the members of ……………. (Name of Company) 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors 
of _______ (Name of the Company) for the year ended _____ in accordance with the 
requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the Regulations.  

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does 
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.  

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.  

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the 
Company for the year ended ______. 

* Further, we highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the 
Regulations as reflected in the note/paragraph reference where it/these is/are stated in the 
Statement of Compliance: 

Note/ paragraph 

Reference     Description 

i- …………………  ………………… 
ii- …………………  ………………… 
iii- …………………  ………………… 

Chartered Accountants 

Place: 

Date:  



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 43 of 233 

 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance 

 

* This paragraph is required when company’s Statement of Compliance refers to a non-
compliance. In terms of regulation 36 of the Regulations, the statutory auditors of a listed 
company shall ensure that any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as 
referred to in the Statement of Compliance is also highlighted in their review report. 

Note 1: In a situation where the company’s Statement of Compliance does not does not mention 
or appropriately explain the non-compliance of the Regulations the statutory auditors shall then 
issue a modified report, a format for which is given below. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MODIFIED REVIEW REPORT 
(see Regulation 6) 

To the members of ……………… (Name of Company)  

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors 
of _______ (Name of the Company) for the year ended _____ in accordance with the 
requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does 
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.  

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance 
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

* Following instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Regulations was /were 
observed which is/are not stated/appropriately stated in the Statement of Compliance:  

i-  …………………   
ii-  …………………  
iii-  …………………  

Based on our review, except for the above instance(s) of non-compliance, nothing has come to 
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations 
as applicable to the Company for the year ended _________. 

** Further, we highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the 
Regulations as reflected in the note/paragraph reference where it/these is/are stated in the 
Statement of Compliance: 

Note/ paragraph 

Reference  Description 

i- …………………  ………………… 
ii- …………………  ………………… 
iii- …………………  ………………… 
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Chartered Accountants 

Place: 

Date: 

*In a situation where the company’s Statement of Compliance does not does not mention or 
appropriately explain the non-compliance of the Regulations the statutory auditors shall then 
issue a modified report. 

**This paragraph is required when company’s Statement of Compliance refers to a non-
compliance. In terms of regulation 36 of the Regulations, the statutory auditors of a listed 
company shall ensure that any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as 
referred to in the Statement of Compliance is also highlighted in their review report. 

  



 

 

SECTION 3 
 

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES  
(CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE) 

GUIDELINES, 2018
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Review Report to the Members on the Statements of Compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 
(ICAP Circular No. 7/2015 dated October 05, 2015 and Paragraph 2(4)(ia) of Public Sector Companies 
(Corporate Governance Compliance) Guidelines, 2018) 
 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in 
the Code of Corporate Governance and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 
2013 (both herein referred to as 'Codes') prepared by the Board of Directors of ____________ for 
the year ended ______ to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation No(s) ______ of 
the Stock Exchange(s) where the Company is listed.  

The responsibility for compliance with the Codes is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be 
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Codes. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with 
the Codes.  

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Codes require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its 
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent 
to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at 
arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related 
party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
'Statement of Compliance' does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Codes as applicable to the Company 
for the year ended ____. 

1 Further, we highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Codes 
as reflected in the note/ paragraph reference where it/these is/are stated in the Statement of 
Compliance: 

Note/paragraph 

Reference     Description 

i. ……………………  …………………… 
ii. …………………… …………………… 
iii. …………………… …………………… 

Chartered Accountants  

Place:  

Date:  
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1 This part is applicable to Public Sector Companies which are also listed and have non-
compliances identified in the Statement of Compliance by the management: 

Required when the Company's Statement of Compliance refers to a non-compliance. The 
statutory auditors of a listed Public sector company shall ensure that any non-compliance with 
the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 as referred to in the Statement of 
Compliance is also highlighted in their review report. In a situation where the Statement of 
Compliance does not mention the non-compliance with a material requirement of the Code of 
Corporate Governance the statutory auditor shall then issue a modified report, a format for 
which is attached.
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Modified Review Report to the Members on the Statements of Compliance with 
the Code of Corporate Governance and Public Sector Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Rules, 2013 
(See Paragraph 2(4)(ib) of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance Compliance) Guidelines, 2018) 
 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in 
the Code of Corporate Governance and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 
2013 (both herein referred to as 'Codes') prepared by the Board of Directors of ____________ 
for the year ended ____ to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation No(s) __ of the 
Stock Exchange(s) where the Company is listed. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Codes is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be 
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Codes. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with 
the Codes. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding 
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an 
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' 
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the 
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and 
risks. 

The Codes require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its 
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent 
to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at 
arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related 
party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

Following instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Codes were observed 
which are not stated in the Statement of Compliance:  

i  ....................... 

ii  ....................... 

iii  ....................... 

Based on our review, except for the above instance(s) of non-compliance, nothing has come to 
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices 
contained in the Codes as applicable to the Company for the year ended ________. 

1 Further, we highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Codes 
as reflected in the note/ paragraph reference where it/these is/are stated in the Statement of 
Compliance:  

Note/ paragraph  

Reference   Description  

i.   ……………………   …………………… 
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ii.  ……………………  …………………… 

iii.  ……………………   …………………… 

 
Chartered Accountants  

Place: 

Date:  

 

1 This part is applicable to Public Sector Companies which are also listed and have non-
compliances identified in the Statement of Compliance by the management:  

Required when the Company's Statement of Compliance refers to a non-compliance. The 
statutory auditors of a listed Public sector company shall ensure that any non-compliance with 
the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 as referred to in the Statement of 
Compliance is also highlighted in their review report. In a situation where the Statement of 
Compliance does not mention the non-compliance with a material requirement of the Code of 
Corporate Governance the statutory auditor shall then issue a modified report, a format for 
which is attached. 
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Review Report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance with the Public 
Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013  
(See Paragraph 2(4)(ii)(a) of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance Compliance) 
Guidelines, 2018) 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in 
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the 
Board of Directors of ____________ for the year ended ____.  

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be 
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with 
the Rules.  

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.  

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are 
not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate 
pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to 
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.  

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company 
for the year ended ____.  

Auditor: 

Place:  

Date:
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Modified Review Report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance with 
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in 
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the 
Board of Directors of ____________ for the year ended ____. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be 
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with 
the Rules. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of 
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective 
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on 
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review 
and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are 
not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate 
pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to 
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.  

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Rules was/were observed 
which is/are not stated in the Statement of Compliance: 

 i  ....................... 
ii  ....................... 
iii  .......................  

Based on our review, except for the above instance(s) of non-compliance, nothing has come to 
our attention which causes us to believe that the 'Statement of Compliance' does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices 
contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the year ended ___________.  

Auditor  

Place:  

Date: 
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COST AUDITOR'S REPORT 
[See regulation 6(3)] 

 
I/We _____________________________________ having been appointed to conduct an audit of 
cost accounts of M/s ____________ have examined the books of account and the statements 
specified under first proviso to sub-section (1) of section 220 of the Companies Act, 2017 and 
the other relevant record for the year ended on __________ and report that. 
 
I/We have/have not obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my/our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of this audit. 
 
in my/our opinion - 

 

a. proper cost accounting. records as required first proviso to sub-section (I) of section 220 of 
the Companies Act, 201 7 (XIX of 2017) and as required by these regulations. have been / 
have not been kept by the company; 
 

b. proper returns. statements and schedules for the purpose of audit of cost accounts have / 
have not been received from branches not visited by me/us: and 
 

c. the said books and records give/do not give the information required by the regulations in 
the manner so required. 

 
in my/our opinion and, subject to best of my/our information – 
 
a. the annexed statement of capacity utilization and stock-in-trade are/are not in agreement 

with the books of account of the company and exhibit/ do not exhibit true and fair view of 
the company's affairs; and 
 

b. cost accounting records have/have not been properly kept so as to give a true and fair view 
of the cost of production, processing, manufacturing, marketing, cost of sales, profit margin 
on indigenous and export sales and any other information of the undermentioned products 
of the company, namely: - 

 
(i) __________________ 

 
The matter contained in the Appendix III forms part of this report and approved by the board on 
[dd/mm/yy] 
 

Dated: This …………………. day of ………………….   

Signature: 

(Name of the cost auditor or firm of cost auditors) 
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Appendix III 
PARTICULARS TO BE INCLUDED IN COST AUDITORS' 

REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 
 

1. Capacity: 
 

a. Licensed, installed and utilized capacities of the unit or units for the products under 
reference. 
 

b. If the company is engaged in other activities besides the manufacture of the product 
under reference, give a brief note on the nature of such other activities. 
 

c. Details need to be furnished about whether capacity was owned or available through 
leasing arrangements/loan/outsourcing; 
 

d. Normal capacity shall be determined vis-a-vis installed capacity after carrying out 
adjustments i.e., number of shifts, holidays. normal shut down days and normal idle 
time; loss in efficiency due to ageing of the equipment/ plant or any other etc. 

 
2. Cost accounting system: 
 

a. Brief comments on the cost accounting system and its adequacy or otherwise to 
determine correctly the cost of the product under reference. 
 

b. Briefly specify the changes, if any made in the cost accounting policy for goods under 
audit during the current financial year as compared to previous financial year. 
 

c. Observation of the cost auditor regarding adequacy or otherwise of the budgetary 
control system, if any. 

 
3. Production: 
 

a. Production in quantities of each type of product under reference. 
 

b. Percentage of production of the product under reference in relation to installed 
capacity. If there is any shortfall in production as compared to the installed capacity, 
brief comments as to the reasons for the shortfall. 
 

c. If there is any addition to the production capacity during the year under review or in 
the immediately preceding two years, this may also be mentioned. 

 
4. Raw material: 

 

a. The cost of major raw material consumed both in terms of quantity and value. Where 
the cost of transport, etc., of raw material is significant, specify the same separately. 
 

b. Consumption of major raw material per unit of production compared with the standard 
requirements, if any. 
 

c. Explanations for variances, if any, in the consumption of major raw material per unit 
of production as compared to the preceding two years, and with standard requirement, 
if any. 

d. Comments on the method of accounting followed for recording the quantities and value 
of receipts, issues and balances of all material directly used in production. 
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e. Details should be furnished that whether the raw material was a domestic purchase or 
imported, in case it was imported breakup of cost must be given showing 

 
i. Price (in foreign currency) 
ii. Insurance and freight /travelling expenses 
iii. Custom Duty if any 
iv. Clearing charges 
v. Other expenses (if any) 

 
5. Wages and salaries 
 

a. Total wages and salaries paid for all categories of employees, separately in respect of 
each of the following, namely: - 

 
i. direct labour costs on production; 
ii. indirect employees' cost on production;  
iii. employees' cost on administration; 
iv. employees' cost on selling and distribution; 
v. bonus to workers and employees, 
vi. other employees' cost, if any (including taxes and levies); and 
vii. total employees' cost [total of items (i) to (iv) above]. 
 

b. Salaries and perquisites of directors and chief executive. 
 

c. Total man-days of direct labour available and actually worked for the year. 
 

d. Average number of workers employed for the year. 
 

e. Direct labour cost per unit of output of the product (give information in respect of 
each). 
 

f. Brief explanations for variances in item (e) above, if any, as compared to the previous 
two years, 
 

g. Comments on the incentive schemes, if any, with particular reference to its 
contributions towards increasing productivity and its effect on cost of production. 

 
6. Stores and spare part 
 

a. The expenditure per unit of output on stores, etc. 
 

b. Comments on the system of stores accounting for recording receipts, issues and 
balances, both in quantities and values. 
 

c. If practicable, the proportion of closing inventory of stores representing items which 
have not moved for over twenty-four months. 

 
7. Depreciation: 
 

a. The method of depreciation adopted by the company, e.g. straight line or diminishing 
balance, etc. 

 

b. The basis of allocation of depreciation on common assets to the different departments. 
 

c. The basis of charging depreciation to the cost of products. 
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8. Overheads: 
 

a. The total amounts of the following overheads and a break-up of items (i), (ii) and (iii) 
below: - 

 
i. Factory overheads. 
ii. Administration overheads. 
iii. Selling and distribution overheads. 
iv. Financial charges 
 

b. Reasons for any significant variances in the expenditure incurred against the item, 
included in overheads as compared with previous two years. 
 

c. The basis of allocation of overheads to cost centers and of absorption to products with 
brief comments if any, on the basis of allocation adopted by the company. 
 

d. Cost of packing. If any, of the products under reference to be shown separately with 
details to the extent possible. 

 
9. Royalty/technical aid payments: 

 
The total amount of royalty/ technical services fees payable for the year and the amount 
chargeable per unit of the product. 
 

10. Abnormal non-recurring features: 
 

a. If there were any abnormal features affecting production during the year, e.g. strikes, 
lockouts, major breakdowns in the plant, substantial power cuts. serious accidents, 
etc., they shall, wherever practicable, be briefly mentioned indicating their impact on 
the cost of production. 
 

b. If there are any special expenses which have been directly allocated to products under 
reference, the total amount as also the incidence per unit of product shall be shown. 

 
11. Cost of production: 

 
The cost per unit of different categories, varieties or qualities of each of the products 
under reference with comparative figures for the previous year and comments on the 
reasons of difference. 
 

12. Sales: 
 

a. The sales in quantities and net sales realization of the different categories, varieties 
or quantities of product under reference showing the average sales realization per unit. 
 

b. If product under reference is exported, quantity exported, net realization per unit, 
countries to which exported indicating the profit or loss incurred in export. 

 
13. Profitability: 

 
The profit per unit earned on each category, variety or quantity of the products, comments 
on the comparative profits of different categories of the products per unit as well as in 
term of per machine hour, etc., and comments on the adequacy or otherwise of product 
for maximization of profit. 
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14. Related party transactions: Details should be furnished for each sale/purchase made to 
related party separately. Following details must be shown 

 

 Name and address of the related party 

 goods given 

 quantity 

 amount 

 normal price and basis adopted to determine normal price 

 transfer price and the related cost to produce and the profit earned, if any on the 
transfer price 

 
Details of related party transactions without indicating the Normal Price and the basis 
thereof shall be considered as incomplete information. 

 
15. Distribution of earning: 

 
Details need to be shown that how the earnings were distributed to the following parties 

 

 Employees as salaries and wages, retirement benefits etc 

 Shareholders as dividends 

 Company as retained earnings 

 Governments as taxes 

 Extra ordinary expenses 
 

16. Adjustment of cost variances: 
 
Where the company maintains cost records on any basis other than actual such as 
standard costing, the records shall indicate the procedure followed by the company in 
working out the cost of the goods under such system. The cost variances shall be shown 
against separate heads and analyzed into material, labour, overheads and further 
segregated into quantity, price and efficiency variances. The method followed for 
adjusting the cost variances in determining the actual cost of the goods or services shall 
be indicated clearly in the cost records. The reasons for the variances shall be duly 
explained in the cost records and statements. 
 

17. Cost auditors' observations and conclusions: 
 

a. Matters which appear to him to be clearly wrong in principle or apparently 
unjustifiable. 
 

b. Cases where the company's funds have been used in a negligent or inefficient manner. 
 

c. Factors which could have been controlled, but have not been done resulting in increase 
in the cost or production. 

 
i. The adequacy or otherwise of budgetary control system, if any, in vogue in the 

company; and  
ii. the scope and performance of internal audit, if any. 
 

d. Suggestions for improvements in performance, if any, e.g., by. 
 

i. rectification of general imbalance in production facilities 
 

ii. Full utilization installed capacity; 
 

iii. comments on areas offering scope for 
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I. cost reduction;  
II. increased productivity; 
III. key limiting factors causing production bottle-necks 
IV. improved inventory policies or 
V. energy conservancy;  
 

iv. state of technology, whether modem or obsolete; and 
 

v. plant, whether new or second-hand when installed. 
 

18. Reconciliation with financial statements: 
 
After the auditor appointed under section 246 of the Act, submits his report, the cost 
auditor shall submit a supplementary report on reconciliation with financial accounts to 
the directors before the date fixed for holding the annual general meeting of the 
company in the manner as given below: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 
Current 

Year 
Previous 

Year 

1 Profit and loss per cost accounting records   

2 Add: incomes not considered in cost accounts (specify)   

3 Less: expenses not considered in cost accounts   

4 Add: overvaluation of closing stock in financial accounts   

5 Add: undervaluation of opening stock in financial 
account 

  

6 Less: overvaluation of opening stocks in financial 
accounts 

  

7 Less: undervaluation of closing stocks in financial 
accounts 

  

8 Adjustment for other, if any (specify)   

9 Profit or loss as per financial account   

 
19. Cost statement: 

 
Copies of all the cost statements on the formats specified in Schedule to these 
regulations, duly authenticated by the chief executive and chief financial officer of the 
company, and verified by the cost auditor, shall be appended to the report. 
 

20. Miscellaneous: 
 
As far as practicable, comparison of all figures of cost and production shall be made with 
the figures of previous year.



 

 

SECTION 5 
 

REPORT FORMATS NOTIFIED BY PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHANGE
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INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT ON STATEMENT OF FREE FLOAT 
OF SHARES  
(Report format was developed by Institute and notified by PSX via Notice no. PSX/N-4829 dated 
Aug 16, 2017) 

To the Chief Executive of the ……. (name of Company) 

1. Introduction  

We have been engaged to perform a reasonable assurance engagement on the annexed 
*Statement of Free Float of Shares (the ‘Statement’) of ………… (the Company) as of 
…………, ……………, ………… and ………… (mention relevant quarter end). 

2. Applicable Criteria  

The criteria against which the Statement is assessed is Regulation No. 5.7.2(c)(ii) of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations (PSX Regulations) which requires every 
listed company/modaraba/mutual fund to submit directly to Pakistan Stock Exchange 
(PSX) an annual Free-Float Certificate duly verified by the auditor along with the annual 
audited accounts as prescribed under regulation 5.6.4(a) of the PSX Regulations.  

3. Management’s Responsibility for the Statement/s  

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Statement as of …………, ……………, 
…………… and …………… (mention relevant quarter end) in accordance with the applicable 
criteria. This responsibility includes maintaining adequate records and internal controls 
as determined necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement/s such that it is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

4. Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of 
Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, 
professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior.  

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 “Quality Control for firms 
that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance 
and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system 
of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance 
with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements.  

5. Our responsibility and summary of the work performed  

Our responsibility is to carry out an independent reasonable assurance engagement and 
to express an opinion as to whether the Statement is prepared in accordance with the 
applicable criteria, based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we 
have obtained. 

We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with International 
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), ‘Assurance Engagements other than 
audits or reviews of historical financial statements’ (ISAE 3000) (Revised) issued by the 
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we 
plan and perform this engagement to obtain reasonable level of assurance about whether 
the Statement is free from material misstatement.  

http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
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A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) involves 
performing procedures to obtain evidence about the free float of shares and related 
information in the Statement. The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected 
depend on the practitioner’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, in the Statement. In making those risk 
assessments, we considered internal control relevant to …… (name of company)’s 
preparation of the Statement. A reasonable assurance engagement also includes 
assessing the applicable criteria used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the Statement.  

We have carried out the procedures considered necessary for the purpose of providing 
reasonable assurance on the Statement. Our assurance procedures performed included 
verification of information in the Statement with the underlying data and record 
comprising of Central Depository Company statements, forms submitted by the Company 
with Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to its pattern of shareholding 
and other related information. Verification that the computation of free float of shares 
is in accordance with the PSX regulation also forms part of our assurance procedures.  

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

6. Opinion*  

In our opinion, the Statement as of ………., …………, …………. and ………… (mention relevant 
quarter end) is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the PSX 
Regulations. 

7. Restriction on use and distribution  

This report is issued in relation to the requirements as stipulated under Regulation No 
5.7.2(c)(ii) of the PSX Regulations and is not to be used or distributed for any other 
purpose. This report is restricted to the facts stated herein and the attachments. 

 

Date: __________ Signature 

 Chartered Accountants 

[Place / City]   

  

Note:  

* Modification/Qualification of opinion, if applicable, shall be in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised).
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM OF THE 
SECURITIES BROKERS 
(Report format developed by Institute in consultation with SECP was notified by PSX through Notice No. 
PSX/N-4967 dated August 23, 2017) 

To the members of [____________ (the Securities Broker)] 

1. Introduction 

We have undertaken a limited assurance engagement, as required under Regulation 35(5) of the 
Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 (the Regulations) issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), to assess whether during the period 
from _______ to ________, the Securities Broker has, in all material respects:  

a) maintained systems and controls adequate to identify with reasonable accuracy the assets 
held on behalf of the customer and distinguish such assets from the proprietary assets of the 
Securities Broker;  
 

b) implemented an adequate internal control system and compliance function commensurate 
with the size and nature of services performed by the Securities Broker; and 
 

c) has established a compliance function that performed its functions with efficiency.  
 

2. Criteria  

The criteria against which the Securities Broker’s internal control system, including the controls 
implemented to identify assets held on behalf of the customer and distinguish such assets from 
the proprietary assets of the Securities Broker and efficiency of compliance function is 
evaluated, are the internal controls and compliance procedures set out within the ‘Guidelines 
for the Internal Control System and Compliance Function for the Securities Brokers’ (the 
Guidelines) issued by the ……………… read with the Regulations and the Securities Act, 2015 (the 
Criteria).  

3. Responsibility of the Board of Directors/Management 

The Board of Directors/management is responsible for establishing and maintaining systems and 
controls to identify and distinguish assets held on behalf of customers and establishing and 
maintaining an effective internal control system and compliance function in accordance with 
the Criteria. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and effectively operating 
throughout the period, the said systems, controls and compliance function commensurate with 
the size of the Securities Broker.  

4. Limitations 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls, including the possibility of collusion or 
management override of controls, material misstatements and significant deficiencies due to 
fraud or error may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Further, our limited assurance 
conclusion is based on the historical information provided by the management, and projection 
to future periods of any evaluation or conclusion about the suitability of design and/or operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls and compliance function would be inappropriate.  

5. Our independence and quality control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
for Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which 
is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due 
care, confidentiality and professional behavior.  
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The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 ‘Quality Control for firms that 
perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related 
Services Engagements’ and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control 
including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, 
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

6. Our responsibility and summary of work performed 

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the adequacy of systems and 
controls designed and implemented by the Securities Broker to identify and distinguish the assets 
held on behalf of the customer, and on the adequacy of internal control system and operation 
of the compliance function, based on the procedures which we have performed and the evidence 
we have obtained. We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with 
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), ‘Assurance Engagements 
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Statements’ issued by the International 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (the standard). The standard requires that we plan and 
perform this engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether systems over identification 
and distinguishing of assets held on behalf of customers, adequate internal controls and 
compliance function as required under the Regulations and explained under the Criteria were 
suitably designed and operated effectively to achieve the related control and compliance 
objectives, throughout the period from ……… to ……… 

A limited assurance engagement involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of 
Securities Broker’s use of the Criteria as the basis for the systems and controls to identify and 
distinguish assets held on behalf of customers and the basis for internal control system and 
compliance function, assessing the risks of material misstatement and significant deficiencies 
due to fraud or error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances, 
assessing the effectiveness of internal control system and compliance function which 
commensurate with the size and nature of services performed by the Securities Broker. A limited 
assurance engagement is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in 
relation to both the risk assessment procedures and the procedures performed in response to 
the assessed risks. 

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, 
and as explained above are less in extent than the reasonable assurance engagement; 
consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially 
lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance 
engagement been performed. Accordingly, the procedures selected were based on our 
professional judgement. Within the scope of our work, we performed amongst other the 
following procedures: (these are the suggested work performed that may be modified and other 
procedures added as performed and relevant for the respective engagement conditions). (Refer 
note 1) 

7. Description of the matter(s) giving rise to the exceptions (if any) (Refer note 2) 

a) _______________________________; 

b) _______________________________; [insert exceptions, if any].   
           
  

8. Highlight non-compliance(s) (if any) with the Framework (Refer note 3) 

We highlight below instance(s) of non-compliance with the internal control system and 
compliance function implemented by the Securities Broker as reflected in the paragraph 
reference where it/these is/are stated in the Criteria: 

Paragraph Reference  Description 

http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf
http://www.icap.org.pk/QCR/ISQC/ISQC1.pdf


 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 65 of 233 

 

Assurance Report on the Internal Control System of the Securities Brokers 

i- ………………………… ……………………  
ii- ………………………… …………………… 
iii- ………………………… …………………… 
 
9. Limited assurance conclusion 

Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this 
report. We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our limited assurance conclusion. 

Based on our limited assurance engagement, nothing has come to our attention (except for the 
effect of the matters reported in the paragraph above), that causes us to believe the Securities 
Broker in accordance with the Criteria, during the period from ….…… to ………..., in all material 
respects: 

(a) has not maintained systems and controls adequate to enable us to identify with reasonable 
accuracy, the assets held on behalf of the customer and distinguish such assets from the 
proprietary assets of the Securities Broker; 
 

(b) has not implemented an adequate internal control system and compliance function 
commensurate with the size and nature of services performed by the Securities Broker; and 
 

(c)  has not established a compliance function that performed its functions with efficiency. 
 

Date: __________ Signature 

 Chartered accountants 

[Place / City] ___________________________ 

 Assurance engagement partner 

Note 1: Procedures will depend upon the auditor's judgment and may vary with the scope of work. 
Following procedures may be relevant for the engagement: 

a) Visited the Securities Broker’s office and discussed with management, compliance and operations 
team on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and compliance function in 
accordance with the Guidelines; 

b) Reviewed the systems documentation, such as manuals, flow charts and job descriptions; 

c) Walkthrough of the internal controls procedures and compliance function procedures to gain 
understanding of implemented controls and procedures and assess control risks; 

d) Reviewed the reliability of the information and their operating effectiveness; 

e) Enquired from personnel to obtain relevant information or representation that included 
knowledge, additional information and affirmation regarding the control of procedures and 
compliance function procedures and corroborating evidence of the control procedures and 
compliance function procedures; 

f) Inspected, on a sample basis, of the documents and records indicating performance of the control 
procedures and compliance function including those relating to entity level controls, brokerage 
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operations, finance, fixed assets, trade debts, investments, cash and bank, expenses and 
information technology (mention whichever is applicable); 

g) Evaluated the effect of the findings of the substantive procedures performed on the effectiveness 
of internal controls and compliance function; 

h) Observed the application or existence of specific control and compliance procedures as 
represented; 

i) Reviewed the Securities Broker’s control and compliance function activities that contribute to 
the mitigation of risks to an acceptable level;  

j) Reviewed the Securities Broker’s general control and compliance function activities over 
technology to support the achievement of objectives; and 

k)  Re-performed, on a sample basis, the control or processing application of the control procedures 
and compliance function procedures to check the accuracy of their operation. 

The procedures performed are related to the reporting period from xxxxxx to xxxxxx and did not 
extend to any assertions made by the Securities Broker regarding events subsequent to the period 
end. Further, the procedures included the review to the extent where such compliance can be 
objectively verified; and the authenticity of documents produced by the Securities Broker’s was not 
checked by contacting the respective parties. 

Note 2: Include when it is applicable. 

This section shall comprise of matter(s) which is/are giving rise to modified conclusion. The modified 
conclusion (qualified or adverse or disclaimer) shall be stated in section 9 of the assurance report in 
accordance with ISAE 3000.  

Note 3: This section comprises of matters of non-compliances identified during the engagement that 
are although not material on an overall basis but clearly other than of trivial nature
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ISA 510, INITIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT – OPENING BALANCES 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

Illustration 1: Qualified opinion due to inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding opening balances of inventory 

 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor did not observe the counting of the physical inventory at the beginning of the 
current period and was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
opening balances of inventory. 

 The possible effects of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
opening balances of inventory are deemed to be material but not pervasive to the entity’s 
financial performance and cash flows. 

 The financial position at year end is fairly presented. 

 In this particular jurisdiction, law and regulation prohibit the auditor from giving an opinion 
which is qualified regarding the financial performance and cash flows and unmodified regarding 
financial position. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Corresponding figures are presented, and the prior period’s financial statements were audited 
by a predecessor auditor. The auditor is not prohibited by law or regulation from referring to 
the predecessor auditor’s report on the corresponding figures and has decided to do so. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 
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In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at 
December 31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We were appointed as auditors of the company on June 30, 20X1 and thus did not observe the 
counting of the physical inventories at the beginning of the year. We were unable to satisfy 
ourselves by alternative means concerning inventory quantities held at December 31, 20X0. 
Since opening inventories enter into the determination of the financial performance and cash 
flows, we were unable to determine whether adjustments might have been necessary in respect 
of the profit for the year reported in the statement of comprehensive income and the net cash 
flows from operating activities reported in the statement of cash flows. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.  

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 20X0 were audited 
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 20X1. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2: Qualified opinion on the financial performance and cash flows and unmodified 
opinion on financial position 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor did not observe the counting of the physical inventory at the beginning of the 
current period and was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
opening balances of inventory. 

 The possible effects of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
opening balances of inventory are deemed to be material but not pervasive to the entity’s 
financial performance and cash flows. 

 The financial position at year end is fairly presented. 

 An opinion that is qualified regarding the financial performance and cash flows and unmodified 
regarding financial position is considered appropriate in the circumstances. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Corresponding figures are presented, and the prior period’s financial statements were audited 
by a predecessor auditor. The auditor is not prohibited by law or regulation from referring to 
the predecessor auditor’s report on the corresponding figures and has decided to do so. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

Qualified Opinion on the Financial Performance and Cash Flows 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying statement of comprehensive income and 
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statement of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects (or give a true and fair view of), 
the financial performance and cash flows of the Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Opinion on the Financial Position 

In our opinion, the accompanying statement of financial position presents fairly, in all material 
respects (or gives a true and fair view of), the financial position of the Company as at December 
31, 20X1 in accordance with IFRSs. 

Basis for Opinions, Including Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Financial Performance and 
Cash Flows 

We were appointed as auditors of the Company on June 30, 20X1 and thus did not observe the 
counting of the physical inventories at the beginning of the year. We were unable to satisfy 
ourselves by alternative means concerning inventory quantities held at December 31, 20X0. Since 
opening inventories enter into the determination of the financial performance and cash flows, 
we were unable to determine whether adjustments might have been necessary in respect of the 
profit for the year reported in the statement of comprehensive income and the net cash flows 
from operating activities reported in the statement of cash flows. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our unmodified opinion on the financial position and our 
qualified audit opinion on the financial performance and cash flows. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 20X0 were audited 
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 20X1. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised)—see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised)] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date] 
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ISA 570, GOING CONCERN (REVISED) 

 

Illustrations of Auditor’s Reports Relating to Going Concern 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report containing an unmodified opinion when the auditor has 
concluded that a material uncertainty exists and disclosure in the financial statements is 
adequate. 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report containing a qualified opinion when the auditor has 
concluded that a material uncertainty exists and that the financial statements are materially 
misstated due to inadequate disclosure. 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report containing an adverse opinion when the auditor has 
concluded that a material uncertainty exists and the financial statements omit the required 
disclosures relating to a material uncertainty. 
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Illustration 1 – Unmodified Opinion when a material uncertainty exists and disclosure in the 

financial statements is adequate  

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. The disclosure of the material uncertainty in the financial 
statements is adequate. 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701.  

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and has not yet identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, (or 
give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, and 
(of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note XXX in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company 
incurred a net loss of ZZZ during the year ended December 31, 20X1 and, as of that date, the 
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by YYY. As stated in Note 6, these events or 
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 6, indicate that a material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the 
matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.  

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2 – Qualified Opinion When a Material Uncertainty Exists and the Financial 
Statements Are Materially Misstated Due to Inadequate Disclosure  

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Note yy to the financial statements discusses the magnitude of 
financing arrangements, the expiration and the total financing arrangements; however, the 
financial statements do not include discussion on the impact or the availability of refinancing 
or characterize this situation as a material uncertainty.  

 The financial statements are materially misstated due to the inadequate disclosure of the 
material uncertainty. A qualified opinion is being expressed because the auditor concluded 
that the effects on the financial statements of this inadequate disclosure are material but not 
pervasive to the financial statements. 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the qualified opinion on the financial statements also affects the 
other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the incomplete disclosure of the information referred to in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects (or give a true and fair view of), the financial position of the Company as at 
December 31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As discussed in Note yy, the Company’s financing arrangements expire and amounts outstanding are 
payable on March 19, 20X2. The Company has been unable to conclude re-negotiations or obtain 
replacement financing. This situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements 
do not adequately disclose this matter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
6 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other information section in 
Illustration 6 would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the qualified 
opinion that also affects the other information.] 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

[Descriptions of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – Adverse Opinion When a Material Uncertainty Exists and Is Not Disclosed in the 
Financial Statements 

For purposes of the illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, and the Company is considering bankruptcy. The financial 
statements omit the required disclosures relating to the material uncertainty. An adverse 
opinion is being expressed because the effects on the financial statements of such omission 
are material and pervasive. 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the adverse opinion on the financial statements also affects the 
other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Adverse Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, because of the omission of the information mentioned in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements do not present fairly (or do not give a 
true and fair view of), the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Adverse Opinion 

The Company’s financing arrangements expired and the amount outstanding was payable on 
December 31, 20X1. The Company has been unable to conclude re-negotiations or obtain 
replacement financing and is considering filing for bankruptcy. This situation indicates that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. The financial statements do not adequately disclose this fact. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our adverse opinion. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
7 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the Other Information section in 
Illustration 7 would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the adverse 
opinion that also affects the other information.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]
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ISA 600, SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS — AUDITS OF GROUP FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (INCLUDING THE WORK OF COMPONENT AUDITORS) 

Illustration: Qualified opinion when a group engagement team is unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence relating to a significant component accounted for by the 
equity method 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity 
using a fair presentation framework. The audit is a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 applies).  

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
IFRSs (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for the 
consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The group engagement team is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence relating to a 
significant component accounted for by the equity method (recognized at $15 million in the 
statement of financial position, which reflects total assets of $60 million) because the group 
engagement team did not have access to the accounting records, management, or auditor of the 
component.  

 The group engagement team has read the audited financial statements of the component as at 
December 31, 20X1, including the auditor’s report thereon, and considered related financial 
information kept by group management in relation to the component.  

 In the group engagement partner’s judgment, the effect on the group financial statements of this 
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence is material but not pervasive. 

 The International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
comprises all of the relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty does 
not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters in 
accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report and the 
qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements also affects the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those responsible 
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
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In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects (or give a true and fair view of), the consolidated financial position of the Group as 
at December 31, 20X1, and (of) their consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

ABC Company’s investment in XYZ Company, a foreign associate acquired during the year and 
accounted for by the equity method, is carried at $15 million on the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at December 31, 20X1, and ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income of $1 million is included in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the carrying amount of ABC’s investment in XYZ as at 
December 31, 20X1 and ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income for the year because we were denied access 
to the financial information, management, and the auditors of XYZ. Consequently, we were unable to 
determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 6 in 
Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other information section in Illustration 6 
would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the qualified opinion that also 
affects the other information.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised). The last two 
paragraphs which are applicable for audits of listed entities only would not be included.] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate 
for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address]  

[Date] 

If, in the group engagement partner’s judgment, the effect on the group financial statements of the 
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence is material and pervasive, the group 
engagement partner would disclaim an opinion in accordance with ISA 705 (Revised).



 

 

SECTION 9 
 

AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 700 (REVISED) 
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ISA 700, FORMING AN OPINION AND REPORTING ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (REVISED) 

Illustrations of Independent Auditor’s Reports on Financial Statements 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on financial statements of a listed entity prepared in 
accordance with a fair presentation framework 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on consolidated financial statements of a listed entity 
prepared in accordance with a fair presentation framework 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report on financial statements of an entity other than a listed 
entity prepared in accordance with a fair presentation framework (where reference is made 
to material that is located on a website of an appropriate authority) 

 Illustration 4: An auditor’s report on financial statements of an entity other than a listed 
entity prepared in accordance with a general purpose compliance framework 
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Illustration 1 – Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of a Listed Entity Prepared in Accordance 
with a Fair Presentation Framework 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit comprise the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with 
the ethical requirements relating to the audit in the jurisdiction, and the auditor refers to 
both.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and has not yet identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
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responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

Paragraph 41(b) of this ISA explains that the shaded material below can be located in an 
Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) explains that when law, regulation or national 
auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website of an appropriate 
authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather than including 
this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website addresses, 
and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.4 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

The form and content of this section of the auditor’s report would vary depending on the nature 
of the auditor’s other reporting responsibilities prescribed by local law, regulation, or national 
auditing standards. The matters addressed by other law, regulation or national auditing 
standards (referred to as “other reporting responsibilities”) shall be addressed within this 
section unless the other reporting responsibilities address the same topics as those presented 
under the reporting responsibilities required by the ISAs as part of the Report on the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section. The reporting of other reporting responsibilities that address 
the same topics as those required by the ISAs may be combined (i.e., included in the Report on 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section under the appropriate subheadings) provided that 
the wording in the auditor’s report clearly differentiates the other reporting responsibilities 
from the reporting that is required by the ISAs where such a difference exists.  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]   
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Illustration 2 – Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements of a Listed Entity 
Prepared in accordance with a Fair Presentation Framework 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of a listed entity using a fair 
presentation framework. The audit is a group audit of an entity with subsidiaries (i.e., ISA 600 
applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in 
accordance with IFRSs (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants comprises all of the relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, the auditor has other 
reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
20X1, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 
December 31, 20X1, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code 
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of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.  

Paragraph 41(b) of this ISA explains that the shaded material below can be located in an 
Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) explains that when law, regulation or national 
auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website of an appropriate 
authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather than including 
this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website addresses, 
and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
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to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[The form and content of this section of the auditor’s report would vary depending on the 
nature of the auditor’s other reporting responsibilities prescribed by local law, regulation, or 
national auditing standards. The matters addressed by other law, regulation or national 
auditing standards (referred to as “other reporting responsibilities”) shall be addressed within 
this section unless the other reporting responsibilities address the same topics as those 
presented under the reporting responsibilities required by the ISAs as part of the Report on the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section. The reporting of other reporting 
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responsibilities that address the same topics as those required by the ISAs may be combined 
(i.e., included in the Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section 
under the appropriate subheadings) provided that the wording in the auditor’s report clearly 
differentiates the other reporting responsibilities from the reporting that is required by the 
ISAs where such a difference exists.]  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of an Entity Other than a Listed Entity 
Prepared in accordance with a Fair Presentation Framework 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

 The auditor elects to refer to the description of the auditor’s responsibility included on a 
website of an appropriate authority. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial is located at 
[Organization’s] website at: [website link]. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 4 – Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of an Entity Other than a Listed Entity 
Prepared in Accordance with a General Purpose Compliance Framework  

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity required 
by law or regulation. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Framework (XYZ Law) of Jurisdiction X (that is, a financial reporting 
framework, encompassing law or regulation, designed to meet the common financial 
information needs of a wide range of users, but which is not a fair presentation framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained.  

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee]  

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 20X1, and the income statement, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company are prepared, in all 
material respects, in accordance with XYZ Law of Jurisdiction X.  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 96 of 233 

 

ISA 700 (Revised) 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]  

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
XYZ Law of Jurisdiction X, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Paragraph 41(b) of this ISA explains that the shaded material below can be located in an 
Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) explains that when law, regulation or national 
auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website of an appropriate 
authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather than including 
this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website addresses, 
and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]



 

 

SECTION 10 
 

AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 705 (REVISED) 
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ISA 705, MODIFICATION TO THE OPINION IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT (REVISED) 

Illustrations of Independent Auditor’s Reports with Modifications to the Opinion 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report containing a qualified opinion due to a material 
misstatement of the financial statements.  

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report containing an adverse opinion due to a material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.  

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report containing a qualified opinion due to the auditor’s inability 
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding a foreign associate. 

 Illustration 4: An auditor’s report containing a disclaimer of opinion due to the auditor’s 
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the 
consolidated financial statements.  

 Illustration 5: An auditor’s report containing a disclaimer of opinion due to the auditor’s 
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about multiple elements of the 
financial statements.  
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Illustration 1 – Qualified Opinion due to a material misstatement of the Financial Statements 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 6001 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210.2 

 Inventories are misstated. The misstatement is deemed to be material but not pervasive to the 
financial statements (i.e., a qualified opinion is appropriate). 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
also affects the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements.  

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 
31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Company’s inventories are carried in the statement of financial position at xxx. Management 
has not stated the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value but has stated them 
solely at cost, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. The Company’s records indicate that, 
had management stated the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value, an amount 
of xxx would have been required to write the inventories down to their net realizable value. 
Accordingly, cost of sales would have been increased by xxx, and income tax, net income and 
shareholders’ equity would have been reduced by xxx, xxx and xxx, respectively. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Other Information [or other title if appropriate such as “Information Other that the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements of ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
6 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other information section in 
Illustration 6 would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the qualified 
opinion that also affects the other information.] 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the 
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2 – Adverse Opinion due to a material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of a listed entity using a fair 
presentation framework. The audit is a group audit of an entity with subsidiaries (i.e., ISA 600 
applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance 
with IFRSs (a general purpose framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The consolidated financial statements are materially misstated due to the non-consolidation 
of a subsidiary. The material misstatement is deemed to be pervasive to the consolidated 
financial statements. The effects of the misstatement on the consolidated financial statements 
have not been determined because it was not practicable to do so (i.e., an adverse opinion is 
appropriate). 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 ISA 701 applies; however, the auditor has determined that there are no key audit matters other 
than the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section.  

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the adverse opinion on the consolidated financial statements also 
affects the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, the auditor has other 
reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Adverse Opinion  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
20X1, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not 
present fairly (or do not give a true and fair view of) the consolidated financial position of the 
Group as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Adverse Opinion  

As explained in Note X, the Group has not consolidated subsidiary XYZ Company that the Group 
acquired during 20X1 because it has not yet been able to determine the fair values of certain of 
the subsidiary’s material assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. This investment is 
therefore accounted for on a cost basis. Under IFRSs, the Company should have consolidated this 
subsidiary and accounted for the acquisition based on provisional amounts. Had XYZ Company 
been consolidated, many elements in the accompanying consolidated financial statements would 
have been materially affected. The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the 
failure to consolidate have not been determined. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.  

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
7 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other information section in 
Illustration 7 would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the qualified 
opinion that also affects the other information.] 

Key Audit Matters  

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, we have determined 
that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – Qualified Opinion due to the Auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient audit 
evidence regarding a Foreign Associate  

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of a listed entity using a fair 
presentation framework. The audit is a group audit of an entity with subsidiaries (i.e., ISA 600 
applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in 
accordance with IFRSs (a general purpose framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding an investment 
in a foreign associate. The possible effects of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence are deemed to be material but not pervasive to the consolidated financial 
statements (i.e., a qualified opinion is appropriate).  

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
also affects the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  

 In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, the auditor has other 
reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
20X1, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the 
Group as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Group’s investment in XYZ Company, a foreign associate acquired during the year and 
accounted for by the equity method, is carried at xxx on the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at December 31, 20X1, and ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income of xxx is included in 
ABC’s income for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence about the carrying amount of ABC’s investment in XYZ as at December 31, 20X1 and 
ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income for the year because we were denied access to the financial 
information, management, and the auditors of XYZ. Consequently, we were unable to determine 
whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.  

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements of ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
6 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised). The last paragraph of the other information section in 
Illustration 6 would be customized to describe the specific matter giving rise to the qualified 
opinion that also affects the other information.] 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 4 – Disclaimer of Opinion due to the Auditor’s Inability to Obtain Sufficient 
Appropriate Audit Evidence about a Single Element of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of an entity other than a listed 
entity using a fair presentation framework. The audit is a group audit of an entity with 
subsidiaries (i.e., ISA 600 applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance 
with IFRSs (a general purpose framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a single element 
of the consolidated financial statements. That is, the auditor was also unable to obtain audit 
evidence about the financial information of a joint venture investment that represents over 
90% of the entity’s net assets. The possible effects of this inability to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence are deemed to be both material and pervasive to the consolidated 
financial statements (i.e., a disclaimer of opinion is appropriate).  

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  

 A more limited description of the auditor’s responsibilities section is required.  

 In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, the auditor has other 
reporting responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries 
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, 
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group. 
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of 
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

The Group’s investment in its joint venture XYZ Company is carried at xxx on the Group’s consolidated 
statement of financial position, which represents over 90% of the Group’s net assets as at December 
31, 20X1. We were not allowed access to the management and the auditors of XYZ Company, including 
XYZ Company’s auditors’ audit documentation. As a result, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustments were necessary in respect of the Group’s proportional share of XYZ Company’s assets that 
it controls jointly, its proportional share of XYZ Company’s liabilities for which it is jointly responsible, 
its proportional share of XYZ’s income and expenses for the year, and the elements making up the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the 
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements.  

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate 
for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 108 of 233 

 

ISA 705 (Revised) 

Illustration 5 – Disclaimer of Opinion due to the Auditor’s Inability to Obtain Sufficient 
Appropriate Audit Evidence about Multiple Elements of the Financial Statements 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600, does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework).  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about multiple 
elements of the financial statements, that is, the auditor was also unable to obtain audit 
evidence about the entity’s inventories and accounts receivable. The possible effects of this 
inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence are deemed to be both material and 
pervasive to the financial statements.  

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements.  

 A more limited description of the auditor’s responsibilities section is required. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Disclaimer of Opinion  

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.  

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Company. 
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.  

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion  

We were not appointed as auditors of the Company until after December 31, 20X1 and thus did 
not observe the counting of physical inventories at the beginning and end of the year. We were 
unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the inventory quantities held at 
December 31, 20X0 and 20X1, which are stated in the statements of financial position at xxx and 
xxx, respectively. In addition, the introduction of a new computerized accounts receivable 
system in September 20X1 resulted in numerous errors in accounts receivable. As of the date of 
our report, management was still in the process of rectifying the system deficiencies and 
correcting the errors. We were unable to confirm or verify by alternative means accounts 
receivable included in the statement of financial position at a total amount of xxx as at 
December 31, 20X1. As a result of these matters, we were unable to determine whether any 



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 109 of 233 

 

ISA 705 (Revised) 

adjustments might have been found necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded inventories 
and accounts receivable, and the elements making up the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters 
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial 
statements. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate 
for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]
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AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 706 (REVISED)
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ISA 706, EMPHASIS OF MATTER AND OTHER MATTER PARAGRAPH IN THE 
AUDITOR’S REPORT (REVISED) 

Illustration 1: Auditor’s Report that includes a Key Audit Matters Section, an Emphasis of 
Matter Paragraph, and an Other Matter Paragraph 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 1 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 Between the date of the financial statements and the date of the auditor’s report, there was 
a fire in the entity’s production facilities, which was disclosed by the entity as a subsequent 
event. In the auditor’s judgment, the matter is of such importance that it is fundamental to 
users’ understanding of the financial statements. The matter did not require significant auditor 
attention in the audit of the financial statements in the current period. 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Corresponding figures are presented, and the prior period’s financial statements were audited 
by a predecessor auditor. The auditor is not prohibited by law or regulation from referring to 
the predecessor auditor’s report on the corresponding figures and has decided to do so. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter  

We draw attention to Note X of the financial statements, which describes the effects of a fire 
in the Company’s production facilities. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.]  

Other Matter 

The financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X0, were audited 
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 20X1. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised) – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 2: Qualified Opinion due to a departure from the applicable financial reporting 
framework and that includes an Emphasis of Matter paragraph 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 A departure from the applicable financial reporting framework resulted in a qualified opinion. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 Between the date of the financial statements and the date of the auditor’s report, there was 
a fire in the entity’s production facilities, which was disclosed by the entity as a subsequent 
event. In the auditor’s judgment, the matter is of such importance that it is fundamental to 
users’ understanding of the financial statements. The matter did not require significant auditor 
attention in the audit of the financial statements in the current period. 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has not obtained any other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 
31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Company’s short-term marketable securities are carried in the statement of financial 
position at xxx. Management has not marked these securities to market but has instead stated 
them at cost, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. The Company’s records indicate that 
had management marked the marketable securities to market, the Company would have 
recognized an unrealized loss of xxx in the statement of comprehensive income for the year. 
The carrying amount of the securities in the statement of financial position would have been 
reduced by the same amount at December 31, 20X1, and income tax, net income and 
shareholders’ equity would have been reduced by xxx, xxx and xxx, respectively. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter – Effects of a Fire  

We draw attention to Note X of the financial statements, which describes the effects of a fire 
in the Company’s production facilities. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]
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AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 710 
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ISA 710, COMPARATIVE INFORMATION - CORRESPONDING FIGURES AND 
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

Illustrations of Independent Auditors’ Reports 

 Illustration 1 – Qualified Auditors’ Reports due to the effects or possible effects of the 
matter on the current period’s figures are material. 

 Illustration 2 - Qualified Auditors’ Reports because of the effects or possible effects of 
the unresolved matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the 
corresponding figures. 

 Illustration 3 - Unmodified auditor’ report based on the audit evidence obtained  

 Illustration 4 - Qualified Auditors’ Reports because of the effects or possible effects of 
the matter on the current period’s figures are material to both the current period financial 
statements and prior period financial statements. 
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Illustration 1 – Corresponding Figures 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion. 

 The matter giving rise to the modification is unresolved. 

 The effects or possible effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are material and 
require a modification to the auditor’s opinion regarding the current period figures. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has not obtained any other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 
31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As discussed in Note X to the financial statements, no depreciation has been provided in the 
financial statements, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. This is the result of a decision 
taken by management at the start of the preceding financial year and caused us to qualify our 
audit opinion on the financial statements relating to that year. Based on the straight-line method 
of depreciation and annual rates of 5% for the building and 20% for the equipment, the loss for 
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the year should be increased by xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0, property, plant and equipment 
should be reduced by accumulated depreciation of xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0, and the 
accumulated loss should be increased by xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).]  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).]  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2 – Corresponding Figures 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion. 

 The matter giving rise to the modification is unresolved. 

 The effects or possible effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are immaterial but 
require a modification to the auditor’s opinion because of the effects or possible effects of the 
unresolved matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding 
figures. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise has not decided, to communicate key audit 
matters in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has not obtained any other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding figures of the matter described in 
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company 
as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Because we were appointed auditors of the Company during 20X0, we were not able to observe the 
counting of the physical inventories at the beginning of that period or satisfy ourselves concerning 
those inventory quantities by alternative means. Since opening inventories affect the determination of 
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the results of operations, we were unable to determine whether adjustments to the results of 
operations and opening retained earnings might be necessary for 20X0. Our audit opinion on the 
financial statements for the period ended December 31, 20X0 was modified accordingly. Our opinion 
on the current period’s financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this 
matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 
[jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).]  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).]  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as appropriate 
for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – Corresponding Figures 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor's report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained.  

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise has not decided, to communicate key audit 
matters in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Corresponding figures are presented, and prior period’s financial statements were audited by 
a predecessor auditor.  

 The auditor is not prohibited by law or regulation from referring to the predecessor auditor’s 
report on the corresponding figures and has decided to do so. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
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in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 20X0, were audited 
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 20X1. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

[Reporting in accordance with the reporting requirements in ISA 720 (Revised – see Illustration 
1 in Appendix 2 of ISA 720 (Revised)).] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements3 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 4 – Comparative Financial Statements  

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor is required to report on both the current period financial statements and the prior 
period financial statements in connection with the current year’s audit. 

 The auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion.  

 The matter giving rise to the modification is unresolved. 

 The effects or possible effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are material to 
both the current period financial statements and prior period financial statements and require 
a modification to the auditor’s opinion. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise has not decided, to communicate key audit 
matters in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has not obtained any other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statements of financial position as at December 31, 20X1 and 20X0, and the statements of 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the 
years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 
31, 20X1 and 20X0 and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As discussed in Note X to the financial statements, no depreciation has been provided in the 
financial statements, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. Based on the straight-line 
method of depreciation and annual rates of 5% for the building and 20% for the equipment, the 
loss for the year should be increased by xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0, property, plant and 
equipment should be reduced by accumulated depreciation of xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0, and 
the accumulated loss should be increased by xxx in 20X1 and xxx in 20X0. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date] 
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AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 720 (REVISED) 
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ISA 720, THE AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES RELATING TO OTHER INFORMATION 
(REVISED) 

Illustrations of Independent Auditor’s Reports Relating to Other Information 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, 
containing an unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information 
prior to the date of the auditor's report and has not identified a material misstatement of 
the other information. 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report of a listed entity containing an unmodified opinion when 
the auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s 
report, has not identified a material misstatement of the other information, and expects to 
obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report of an entity other than a listed entity containing an 
unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the 
date of the auditor’s report, has not identified a material misstatement of the other 
information, and expects to obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Illustration 4: An auditor’s report of a listed entity containing an unmodified opinion when 
the auditor has obtained no other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report but 
expects to obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Illustration 5: An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, 
containing an unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information 
prior to the date of the auditor's report and has concluded that a material misstatement of 
the other information exists. 

 Illustration 6: An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, 
containing a qualified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information 
prior to the date of the auditor's report and there is a limitation of scope with respect to a 
material item in the consolidated financial statements which also affects the other 
information. 

 Illustration 7: An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, 
containing an adverse opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information 
prior to the date of the auditor's report and the adverse opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements also affects the other information.  
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Illustration 1 – An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, containing 
an unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the 
date of the auditor's report and has not identified a material misstatement of the other 
information 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of any entity, whether listed or other than 
listed, using a fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 6001 does 
not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).2  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701.3 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has not identified a material misstatement of the other information. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
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accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.]] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the X report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.] 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2 – An auditor’s report of a listed entity containing an unmodified opinion when 
the auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report, 
has not identified a material misstatement of the other information, and expects to obtain 
other information after the date of the auditor’s report 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report, 
has not identified a material misstatement of the other information, and expects to obtain 
other information after the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
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accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the X 
report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which 
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Y report, which is expected to be 
made available to us after that date. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and 
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the 
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

[When we read the Y report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and [describe actions 
applicable in the jurisdiction.]]  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – An auditor’s report of an entity other than a listed entity containing an 
unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the 
date of the auditor’s report, has not identified a material misstatement of the other 
information, and expects to obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of an entity other than a listed entity using a 
fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained part of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report, 
has not identified a material misstatement of the other information, and expects to obtain 
other information after the date of the auditor’s report. 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the 
date of this auditor’s report is [information included in the X report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon] 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 4 – An auditor’s report of a listed entity containing an unmodified opinion when 
the auditor has obtained no other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report but 
expects to obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity using a fair presentation 
framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained no other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report but 
expects to obtain other information after the date of the auditor’s report.  

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 In addition to the audit of the financial statements, the auditor has other reporting 
responsibilities required under local law. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the X report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon]. The X report is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

[When we read the X report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and [describe actions 
applicable in the jurisdiction].] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].  

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]  
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Illustration 5 – An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, containing 
an unmodified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the 
date of the auditor's report and has concluded that a material misstatement of the other 
information exists 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of any entity, whether listed or other than 
listed, using a fair presentation framework. The audit is not a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 does 
not apply). 

 The financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance with IFRSs 
(a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor's report 
and has concluded that a material misstatement of the other information exists 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the X report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.] 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. As described below, we have 
concluded that such a material misstatement of the other information exists. 

[Description of material misstatement of the other information] 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.]] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 1 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

[The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name].] 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 6 – An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, containing 
a qualified opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date 
of the auditor's report and there is a limitation of scope with respect to a material item in the 
consolidated financial statements which also affects the other information 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of any entity, whether listed or 
other than listed, using a fair presentation framework. The audit is a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 
applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in 
accordance with IFRSs (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding an investment 
in a foreign associate. The possible effects of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence are deemed to be material but not pervasive to the consolidated financial 
statements (i.e., a qualified opinion is appropriate). 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
also affects the other information 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
20X1, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, (or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the 
Group as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Group’s investment in XYZ Company, a foreign associate acquired during the year and 
accounted for by the equity method, is carried at xxx on the consolidated statement of financial  
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position as at December 31, 20X1, and ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income of xxx is included in 
ABC’s income for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence about the carrying amount of ABC’s investment in XYZ as at December 31, 20X1 and 
ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income for the year because we were denied access to the financial 
information, management, and the auditors of XYZ. Consequently, we were unable to determine 
whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the X report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.] 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information we are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the 
carrying amount of ABC’s investment in XYZ as at December 31, 20X1 and ABC’s share of XYZ’s 
net income for the year. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other 
information is materially misstated with respect to this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 7 – An auditor’s report of any entity, whether listed or other than listed, containing 
an adverse opinion when the auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the 
date of the auditor's report and the adverse opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
also affects the other information 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of consolidated financial statements of any entity, whether listed or 
other than listed, using a fair presentation framework. The audit is a group audit (i.e., ISA 600 
applies). 

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management of the entity in accordance 
with IFRSs (a general purpose framework). 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the consolidated financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The consolidated financial statements are materially misstated due to the non-consolidation 
of a subsidiary. The material misstatement is deemed to be pervasive to the consolidated 
financial statements. The effects of the misstatement on the consolidated financial statements 
have not been determined because it was not practicable to do so (i.e., an adverse opinion is 
appropriate). 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Key audit matters have been communicated in accordance with ISA 701. 

 The auditor has obtained all of the other information prior to the date of the auditor’s report 
and the matter giving rise to the adverse opinion on the consolidated financial statements also 
affects the other information 

 Those responsible for oversight of the consolidated financial statements differ from those 
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under law or regulation. 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Shareholders of ABC Company [or Other Appropriate Addressee]  

Adverse Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ABC Company and its subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
20X1, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not 
present fairly (or do not give a true and fair view of) the consolidated financial position of the 
Group as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  
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Basis for Adverse Opinion 

As explained in Note X, the Group has not consolidated subsidiary XYZ Company that the Group 
acquired during 20X1 because it has not yet been able to determine the fair values of certain of 
the subsidiary’s material assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. This investment is 
therefore accounted for on a cost basis. Under IFRSs, the Group should have consolidated this 
subsidiary and accounted for the acquisition based on provisional amounts. Had XYZ Company 
been consolidated, many elements in the accompanying consolidated financial statements would 
have been materially affected. The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the 
failure to consolidate have not been determined.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion. 

Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”] 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the X report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.] 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section above, the Group should 
have consolidated XYZ Company and accounted for the acquisition based on provisional amounts. 
We have concluded that the other information is materially misstated for the same reason with 
respect to the amounts or other items in the X report affected by the failure to consolidate XYZ 
Company. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701.] 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).]  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

[Reporting in accordance with ISA 700 (Revised) – see Illustration 2 in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction]  

[Auditor Address]  

[Date]



 

 

SECTION 14  
 

AUDIT REPORT PROVIDED UNDER ISA 800 (REVISED) 
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ISA 800, SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS – AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIAL PURPOSE FRAMEWORK (REVISED) 

 

Illustrations of Auditors’ Reports on Special Purpose Financial Statements 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements prepared in 
accordance with the financial reporting provisions of a contract (for purposes of this 
illustration, a compliance framework). 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements prepared in 
accordance with the tax basis of accounting in Jurisdiction X (for purposes of this illustration, 
a compliance framework). 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements prepared in 
accordance with the financial reporting provisions established by a regulator (for purposes 
of this illustration, a fair presentation framework).  
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Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements of an entity other 
than a listed entity prepared in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of a contract 
(for purposes of this illustration, a compliance framework) 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 The financial statements have been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of a contract (that is, a special purpose framework). 
Management does not have a choice of financial reporting frameworks. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a compliance framework. 

 An auditor’s report on the complete set of general purpose financial statements was not issued. 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Distribution and use of the auditor’s report are restricted. 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701.  

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply). 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial reporting process differ from those responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 20X1, and the income statement, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 20X1 are prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the financial 
reporting provisions of Section Z of the contract dated January 1, 20X1 between the Company 
and DEF Company (“the contract”). 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
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with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use 

We draw attention to Note X to the financial statements, which describes the basis of 
accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist the Company in complying with the 
financial reporting provisions of the contract referred to above. As a result, the financial 
statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the 
Company and DEF Company and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the 
Company or DEF Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of Section Z of the contract and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when law, 
regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website 
of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather 
than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website 
addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction.] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements of an entity other 

than a listed entity prepared in accordance with the tax basis of accounting in Jurisdiction X 

(for purposes of this illustration, a compliance framework) 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements that have been prepared by management of a 
partnership in accordance with the tax basis of accounting in Jurisdiction X (that is, a special 
purpose framework) to assist the partners in preparing their individual income tax returns. 
Management does not have a choice of financial reporting frameworks.  

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a compliance framework. 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised).  

 Distribution of the auditor’s report is restricted. 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701.  

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply).  

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Partnership (the Partnership), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at December 31, 20X1 and the income statement for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Partnership for the year ended 
December 31, 20X1 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [describe the 
applicable income tax law] of Jurisdiction X. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution 

We draw attention to Note X to the financial statements, which describes the basis of 
accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist the partners of the Partnership in 
preparing their individual income tax returns. As a result, the financial statements may not be 
suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the Partnership and its partners 
and should not be distributed to parties other than the Partnership or its partners. Our opinion 
is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the tax basis of accounting in Jurisdiction X and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Partnership’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when law, 
regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a website 
of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s responsibilities, rather 
than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the description on the website 
addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 3 – An auditor’s report on a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity 
prepared in accordance with the financial reporting provisions established by a regulator (for 
purposes of this illustration, a fair presentation framework) 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a complete set of financial statements of a listed entity that have been prepared by 
management of the entity in accordance with the financial reporting provisions established by 
a regulator (that is, a special purpose framework) to meet the requirements of that regulator. 
Management does not have a choice of financial reporting frameworks.  

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a fair presentation framework. 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction.  

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). The disclosure of the 
material uncertainty in the financial statements is adequate. 

 Distribution or use of the auditor’s report is not restricted. 

 The auditor is required by the regulator to communicate key audit matters in accordance with 
ISA 701. 

 The Other Matter paragraph refers to the fact that the auditor has also issued an auditor’s 
report on financial statements prepared by ABC Company for the same period in accordance 
with a general purpose framework. 

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply).  

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statements differ from those responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[To the Shareholders of ABC Company or Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Company (the Company), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 20X1, and the income statement, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
(or give a true and fair view of) the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of Section Y of Regulation Z. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
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the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 

We draw attention to Note X to the financial statements, which describes the basis of 
accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist the Company to meet the 
requirements of Regulator DEF. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for 
another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

We draw attention to Note 6 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company 
incurred a net loss of ZZZ during the year ended December 31, 20X1 and, as of that date, the 
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by YYY. As stated in Note 6, these events 
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 6, indicate that a material 
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the 
matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section above, we have 
determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.  

[Description of each key audit matter in accordance with ISA 701 as applied to this audit.] 

Other Matter 

The Company has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 20X1 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards on which we issued a 
separate auditor’s report to the shareholders of the Company dated March 31, 20X2. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section Y of Regulation Z2 and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when 
law, regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a 
website of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s 
responsibilities, rather than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the 
description on the website addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the 
auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company internal control.3 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]



 

 

SECTION 15 
 

AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 805 (REVISED) 
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ISA 805, SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS – AUDIT OF SINGLE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
AND SPECIAL ELEMENTS, ACCOUNTS OR ITEMS OF A FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

(REVISESD) 

Illustrations of Independent Auditors’ Reports on a Single Financial Statement and on a 
Specific Element of a Financial Statement 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on a single financial statement of an entity other than a 
listed entity prepared in accordance with a general purpose framework (for purposes of this 
illustration, a fair presentation framework). 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on a single financial statement of an entity other than a 
listed entity prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework (for purposes of this 
illustration, a fair presentation framework). 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report on a specific element of a financial statement of a listed 
entity prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework (for purposes of this 
illustration, a compliance framework).  
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Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on a single financial statement of an entity other than a 

listed entity prepared in accordance with a general purpose framework (for purposes of this 

illustration, a fair presentation framework) 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a balance sheet (that is, a single financial statement) of an entity other than a listed 
entity.  

 The balance sheet has been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with the 
requirements of the Financial Reporting Framework in Jurisdiction X relevant to preparing a 
balance sheet.  

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a fair presentation framework designed to 
meet the common financial information needs of a wide range of users. 

 The auditor has determined that it is appropriate to use the phrase “presents fairly, in all 
material respects,” in the auditor’s opinion. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). The disclosure of the 
material uncertainty in the single financial statement is adequate.  

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701 in the context of the audit of the balance sheet.  

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply).  

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statement differ from those responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statement. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the balance sheet of ABC Company (the Company) as at December 31, 20X1 
and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
(together “the financial statement”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 20X1 in accordance with those 
requirements of the Financial Reporting Framework in Jurisdiction X relevant to preparing such 
a financial statement. [Opinion section positioned first as required in ISA 700 (Revised)] 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statement in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
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with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. [The first and last sentences in this section used 
to be in the Auditor’s Responsibility section. Also, the Basis for Opinion section is positioned 
immediately after the Opinion section as required in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

We draw attention to Note 6 in the financial statement, which indicates that the Company 
incurred a net loss of ZZZ during the year ended December 31, 20X1 and, as of that date, the 
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by YYY. As stated in Note 6, these events 
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 6, indicate that a material 
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement 
in accordance with those requirements of the Financial Reporting Framework in Jurisdiction X 
relevant to preparing such a financial statement, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial statement that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statement. 

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when 
law, regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a 
website of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s 
responsibilities, rather than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the 
description on the website addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the 
auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.2 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statement represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on a single financial statement of an entity other than a 
listed entity prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of a statement of cash receipts and disbursements (that is, a single financial statement) 
of an entity other than a listed entity. 

 An auditor’s report on the complete set of financial statements was not issued. 

 The financial statement has been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting to respond to a request for cash flow 
information received from a creditor. Management has a choice of financial reporting 
frameworks. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a fair presentation framework designed to 
meet the financial information needs of specific users. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The auditor has determined that it is appropriate to use the phrase “presents fairly, in all 
material respects,” in the auditor’s opinion. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Distribution or use of the auditor’s report is not restricted. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided, to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701 in the context of the audit of the statement of cash receipts and 
disbursements. 

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply). 

 Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statement and oversight of the 
financial reporting process to prepare this financial statement. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the statement of cash receipts and disbursements of ABC Company (the 
Company) for the year ended December 31, 20X1 and notes to the statement of cash receipts 
and disbursements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (together “the 
financial statement”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, 
the cash receipts and disbursements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1 in 
accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting described in Note X. 
[Opinion section positioned first as required in ISA 700 (Revised)]  
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Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statement in [jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. [The first and last sentences in this section used 
to be in the Auditor’s Responsibility section. Also, the Basis for Opinion section is positioned 
immediately after the Opinion section as required in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 

We draw attention to Note X to the financial statement, which describes the basis of accounting. 
The financial statement is prepared to provide information to XYZ Creditor. As a result, the 
statement may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in 
accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting described in Note X; 
this includes determining that the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting is an 
acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statement in the circumstances, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a 
financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statement.  

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when 
law, regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a 
website of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s 
responsibilities, rather than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the 
description on the website addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the 
auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statement represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]  
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Illustration 3: An auditor’s report on a specific element of a financial statement of a listed 

entity prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework 

For purposes of this illustrative auditor’s report, the following circumstances are assumed: 

 Audit of an accounts receivable schedule (that is, element, account or item of a financial 
statement). 

 The financial information has been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions established by a regulator to meet the requirements of that 
regulator. Management does not have a choice of financial reporting frameworks.  

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a compliance framework designed to meet the 
financial information needs of specific users. 

 The terms of the audit engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility for 
the financial statements in ISA 210. 

 The auditor has concluded an unmodified (i.e., “clean”) opinion is appropriate based on the 
audit evidence obtained. 

 The relevant ethical requirements that apply to the audit are those of the jurisdiction. 

 Distribution of the auditor’s report is restricted. 

 Based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor has concluded that a material uncertainty 
does not exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with ISA 570 (Revised). 

 The auditor is not required, and has otherwise not decided to communicate key audit matters 
in accordance with ISA 701 in the context of the audit of the accounts receivable schedule. 

 The auditor has determined that there is no other information (i.e., the requirements of ISA 
720 (Revised) do not apply). 

 Those responsible for oversight of the financial statement differ from those responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statement. 

 The auditor has no other reporting responsibilities required under local law or regulation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[To the Shareholders of ABC Company or Other Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

We have audited the accounts receivable schedule of ABC Company (the Company) as at 
December 31, 20X1 (“the schedule”). 

In our opinion, the financial information in the schedule of the Company as at December 31, 
20X1 is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [describe the financial reporting 
provisions established by the regulator]. [Opinion section positioned first as required ISA 700 
(Revised)] 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Schedule section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the schedule in 
[jurisdiction], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. [The first and last sentences in this section used to be in 
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the Auditor’s Responsibility section. Also, the Basis for Opinion section is positioned 
immediately after opinion section as required in ISA 700 (Revised).] 

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution 

We draw attention to Note X to the schedule, which describes the basis of accounting. The 
schedule is prepared to assist the Company to meet the requirements of Regulator DEF. As a 
result, the schedule may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for 
the Company and Regulator DEF and should not be distributed to parties other than the Company 
or Regulator DEF. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Schedule 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the schedule in accordance with [describe the 
financial reporting provisions established by the regulator], and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the schedule that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the schedule, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the schedule is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this schedule. 

Paragraph 41(b) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that the shaded material below can be located in 
an Appendix to the auditor’s report. Paragraph 41(c) of ISA 700 (Revised) explains that when 
law, regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit, reference can be made to a 
website of an appropriate authority that contains the description of the auditor’s 
responsibilities, rather than including this material in the auditor’s report, provided that the 
description on the website addresses, and is not inconsistent with, the description of the 
auditor’s responsibilities below. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the schedule, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the schedule 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is [name]. 

[Signature in the name of the audit firm, the personal name of the auditor, or both, as 
appropriate for the particular jurisdiction] 

[Auditor address] [Placement of date and address reversed] 

[Date]



 

 

SECTION 16 
 

AUDIT REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISA 810 (REVISED)
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ISA 810, ENGAGEMENTS TO REPORT ON SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (REVISED) 

Illustrations of Independent Auditor’s Reports on Summary Financial Statements 

 Illustration 1: An auditor’s report on summary financial statements prepared in accordance 
with established criteria. An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial 
statements. The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated later than 
the date of the auditor’s report on the financial statements from which summary financial 
statements are derived. The auditor's report on the audited financial statements includes a 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section and communication of other key 
audit matters. 

 Illustration 2: An auditor’s report on summary financial statements prepared in accordance 
with criteria developed by management and adequately disclosed in the summary financial 
statements. The auditor has determined that the applied criteria are acceptable in the 
circumstances. An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. The 
auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements 
are derived. The auditor’s report on the audited financial statements includes a statement 
that describes an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information. The other 
information to which this uncorrected material misstatement relates is also information 
included in a document containing the summary financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. 

 Illustration 3: An auditor’s report on summary financial statements prepared in accordance 
with criteria developed by management and adequately disclosed in the summary financial 
statements. The auditor has determined that the applied criteria are acceptable in the 
circumstances. A qualified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. The 
auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements 
are derived. 

 Illustration 4: An auditor’s report on summary financial statements prepared in accordance 
with criteria developed by management and adequately disclosed in the summary financial 
statements. The auditor has determined that the applied criteria are acceptable in the 
circumstances. An adverse opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. The 
auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements 
are derived. 

 Illustration 5: An auditor’s report on summary financial statements prepared in accordance 
with established criteria. An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial 
statements. The auditor concludes that it is not possible to express an unmodified opinion 
on the summary financial statements. The auditor’s report on the summary financial 
statements is dated the same as the date of the auditor’s report on the financial statements 
from which the summary financial statements are derived.  



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 168 of 233 

 

ISA 810 (Revised) 

Illustration 1: 

Circumstances include the following: 

An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements of a listed entity. 

 Established criteria for the preparation of summary financial statements exist. 

 The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated later than the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements are 
derived. 

 The auditor’s report on the audited financial statements includes a Material Uncertainty 
Related to Going Concern section. 

 The auditor’s report on the audited financial statements includes communication of other key 
audit matters.1 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary balance sheet as at December 
31, 20X1, the summary income statement, summary statement of changes in equity and summary 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. 

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements are consistent, in all material 
respects, with (or a fair summary of) the audited financial statements, in accordance with 
[describe established criteria]. 

Summary Financial Statements 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by [describe 
financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of 
ABC Company]. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. The summary financial statements and the audited financial statements do not 
reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on the audited 
financial statements  

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon 

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report 
dated February 15, 20X2. That report also includes: 

 A Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section that draws attention to Note 6 
in the audited financial statements. Note 6 of the audited financial statements indicates 
that ABC Company incurred a net loss of ZZZ during the year ended December 31, 20X1 
and, as of that date, ABC Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by YYY. 
These events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 6 of the audited 
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant 
doubt on ABC Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These matters are 
addressed in Note 5 of the summary financial statements. 

 The communication of other key audit matters. [Key audit matters are those matters that, 
in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period.] 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
[describe established criteria]. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent, in all material respects, with (or are a fair summary of) the audited financial 
statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements. 

[Auditor’s signature] 

[Auditor’s address] 

[Date of the auditor’s report] 

______________________________ 

1  As explained in paragraph 15 of ISA 701, a material uncertainty related to going concern is, 
by its nature, a key audit matter but is required to be reported in a separate section of the 
auditor’s report in accordance with paragraph 22 of ISA 570 (Revised). 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary balance sheet as at December 
31, 20X1, the summary income statement, summary statement of changes in equity and summary 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. 

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements are consistent, in all material 
respects, with (or a fair summary of) the audited financial statements, on the basis described 
in Note X. 

Summary Financial Statements 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by [describe 
financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of 
ABC Company]. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. 

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon 

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report 
dated February 15, 20X2. [The audited financial statements are included in the 20X1 Annual 
Report. The auditor’s report on the audited financial statements includes a statement that 
describes an uncorrected material misstatement of other information within Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of the 20X1 Annual Report. Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and 
the uncorrected material misstatement of the other information therein, are also contained in 
the 20X1 Summary Annual Report.] [Describe the uncorrected material misstatement of the 
other information].  

Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis 
described in Note X. 

 

Illustration 2: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. 

 Criteria are developed by management and adequately disclosed in Note X. The auditor has 
determined that the criteria are acceptable in the circumstances. 

 The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements are 
derived.  

 The auditor’s report on the audited financial statements includes a statement that describes 
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information. The other information to 
which this uncorrected material misstatement relates is also information included in a 
document containing the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon. 
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Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent, in all material respects, with (or are a fair summary of) the audited financial 
statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements. 

[Auditor’s signature] 

[Auditor’s address] 

[Date of the auditor’s report]  
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Illustration 3: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 A qualified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. 

 Criteria are developed by management and adequately disclosed in Note X. The auditor has 
determined that the criteria are acceptable in the circumstances. 

 The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements are 
derived. 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Opinion 

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary statement of financial position 
as at December 31, 20X1, the summary statement of comprehensive income, summary statement 
of changes in equity and summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and related 
notes, are derived from the audited financial statements of ABC Company (the Company) for the 
year ended December 31, 20X1. We expressed a qualified audit opinion on those financial 
statements in our report dated February 15, 20X2.1 

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements are consistent, in all material 
respects, with (or a fair summary of) the audited financial statements, on the basis described 
in Note X. However, the summary financial statements are misstated to the equivalent extent 
as the audited financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. 

Summary Financial Statements 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by [describe 
financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of 
ABC Company]. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. 

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon 

We expressed a qualified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 
February 15, 20X2. The basis for our qualified audit opinion was [that management has not stated 
the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value but has stated them solely at cost, 
which constitutes a departure from International Financial Reporting Standards]. The Company’s 
records indicate that had management stated the inventories at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value, an amount of xxx would have been required to write the inventories down to 
their net realizable value. Accordingly, cost of sales would have been increased by xxx, and 
income tax, net income and shareholders’ equity would have been reduced by xxx, xxx and xxx, 
respectively. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis 
described in Note X. 
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Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent, in all material respects, with (or are a fair summary of) the audited financial 
statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements. 

[Auditor’s signature] 

[Auditor’s address] 

[Date of the auditor’s report] 

______________________________ 

1  The positioning of this reference to the qualified opinion in the auditor’s report on the audited 
financial statements in the Opinion paragraph on the summary financial statements assists users 
in understanding that although the auditor has expressed an unmodified opinion on the 
summary financial statements, the summary financial statements reflect audited financial 
statements that are materially misstated. 
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Illustration 4: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 An adverse opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. 

 Criteria are developed by management and adequately disclosed in Note X. The auditor has 
determined that the criteria are acceptable in the circumstances. 

 The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements are 
derived. 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Denial of Opinion 

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary balance sheet as at December 
31, 20X1, the summary income statement, summary statement of changes in equity and summary 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. 

As a result of the adverse opinion on the audited financial statements discussed in The Audited 
Financial Statements and our Report Thereon section of our report, it is inappropriate to express 
an opinion on the accompanying summary financial statements. 

Summary Financial Statements 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by [describe 
financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of 
ABC Company]. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. 

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon 

In our report dated February 15, 20X2, we expressed an adverse opinion on the audited financial 
statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. The basis for our adverse 
opinion was [describe basis for adverse audit opinion]. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements on the basis described 
in Note X. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent, in all material respects, with (or are a fair summary of) the audited financial 
statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements. 

[Auditor’s signature] 

[Auditor’s address] 

[Date of the auditor’s report]  
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Illustration 5: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 An unmodified opinion is expressed on the audited financial statements. 

 Established criteria for the preparation of summary financial statements exist. 

 The auditor concludes that it is not possible to express an unmodified opinion on the summary 
financial statements. 

 The auditor’s report on the summary financial statements is dated the same as the date of the 
auditor’s report on the financial statements from which the summary financial statements are 
derived. 

 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Adverse Opinion 

The summary financial statements, which comprise the summary balance sheet as at December 
31, 20X1, the summary income statement, summary statement of changes in equity and summary 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1. 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse 
Opinion section, the accompanying summary financial statements are not consistent with (or a 
fair summary of) the audited financial statements of ABC Company for the year ended December 
31, 20X1, in accordance with [describe established criteria]. 

Basis for Adverse Opinion 

[Describe matter that caused the summary financial statements not to be consistent, in all 
material respects, with (or a fair summary of) the audited financial statements, in accordance 
with the applied criteria]. 

Summary Financial Statements 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by [describe 
financial reporting framework applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of 
ABC Company]. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. 

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon 

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report 
dated February 15, 20X2. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Summary Audited Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements in 
accordance with [describe established criteria]. 
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Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are 
consistent, in all material respects, with (or are a fair summary of) the audited financial 
statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 810 (Revised), Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements. 

[Auditor’s signature] 

[Auditor’s address] 

[Date of the auditor’s report]



 

 

SECTION 17 
 

REVIEW REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER  
ISRE 2400 (REVISED) 
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ISRE 2400 – ENGAGEMENTS TO REVIEW HISTORICAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(REVISED) 

Illustrative Practitioners’ Review Reports  

Review Reports on General Purpose Financial Statements 

Illustrative Review Reports with Unmodified Conclusions  

 Illustration 1: A practitioner’s report on financial statements prepared in accordance with a 
fair presentation framework designed to meet the common financial information needs of a 
wide range of users (for example, the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small 
and Medium-sized Entities). 

Illustrative Review Reports with Modified Conclusions  

 Illustration 2: A practitioner’s report containing a qualified conclusion due to an apparent 
material misstatement of the financial statements. Financial statements prepared in 
accordance with a compliance framework designed to meet the common information needs 
of a wide range of users. (Financial statements prepared using a compliance framework) 

 Illustration 3: A practitioner’s report containing a qualified conclusion due to the 
practitioner’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence. (Financial statements 

prepared using a fair presentation framework IFRSs) 

 Illustration 4: A practitioner’s report containing an adverse conclusion due to material 
misstatement of the financial statements. (Financial statements prepared using a fair 

presentation frameworkIFRSs) 

 Illustration 5: A practitioner’s report containing a disclaimer of conclusion due to the 
practitioner’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about multiple elements of 

the financial statementsresulting in inability to complete the review. (Financial 

statements prepared using a fair presentation frameworkIFRSs) 

Review Reports on Special Purpose Financial Statements 

 Illustration 6: A practitioner’s report on financial statements prepared in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of a contract (for purposes of this illustration, a compliance 
framework). 

 Illustration 7: A practitioner’s report on a single financial statement prepared in accordance 
with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting (for purposes of this 
illustration, a fair presentation framework)  
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Illustration 1 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of a complete set of financial statements. 

 The financial statements are prepared for a general purpose by management of the entity in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized 
Entities. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 In addition to the review of the financial statements, the practitioner has other reporting 
responsibilities under local law. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and 
Medium-sized Entities,3 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. We 
conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 
2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) 
requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance 
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of 
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these 
financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, (or do not give a true and 
fair view of) the financial position of ABC Company as at December 31, 20X1, and (of) its 
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financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Form and content of this section of the practitioner’s report will vary depending on the nature 
of the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address] 
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Illustration 2 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of a complete set of financial statements required by law or regulation. 

 The financial statements are prepared for a general purpose by management of the entity in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Framework (XYZ Law) of Jurisdiction X (that is, a 
financial reporting framework, encompassing law or regulation, designed to meet the common 
financial information needs of a wide range of users, but which is not a fair presentation 
framework). 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 Based on the review, inventories are misstated. The misstatement is material but not pervasive 
to the financial statements. 

 In addition to the review of the financial statements, the practitioner has other reporting 
responsibilities under local law. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with 
XYZ Law of Jurisdiction X, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. We 
conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 
2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) 
requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance 
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of 
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained.  

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on these financial statements.  
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Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

The company’s inventories are carried in the statement of financial position at xxx. Management 
has not stated the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value but has stated them 
solely at cost, which constitutes a departure from the requirements of the Financial Reporting 
Framework (XYZ Law) of Jurisdiction X. The company’s records indicate that, had management 
stated the inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value, an amount of xxx would 
have been required to write the inventories down to their net realizable value. Accordingly, cost 
of sales would have been increased by xxx, and income tax, net income and shareholders’ equity 
would have been reduced by xxx, xxx and xxx, respectively. 

Qualified Conclusion 

Based on our review, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
financial statements of ABC Company are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 
with the Financial Reporting Framework (XYZ Law) of Jurisdiction X. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Form and content of this section of the practitioner’s report will vary depending on the nature 
of the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  
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Illustration 3 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of a complete set of general purpose financial statements prepared by management of 
the entity in accordance with [a financial reporting framework designed to achieve fair 
presentation other than International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 The practitioner was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding an investment 
in a foreign affiliate. The possible effects of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate 
evidence are deemed to be material but not pervasive to the financial statements. 

 The practitioner does not have other reporting responsibilities under local law in addition to 
the review of the consolidated financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with [name of applicable financial reporting framework, including a 
reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the 
financial reporting framework used is not International Financial Reporting Standards],2 and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. We 
conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 
2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) 
requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance 
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of 
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained.  

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on these financial statements.  
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Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

ABC Company’s investment in XYZ Company, a foreign associate acquired during the year and 
accounted for by the equity method, is carried at xxx on the statement of financial position as 
at December 31, 20X1, and ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income of xxx is included in ABC’s income 
for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain access to the relevant financial information 
of XYZ concerning the carrying amount of ABC’s investment in XYZ as at December 31, 20X1 and 
ABC’s share of XYZ’s net income for the year. Consequently, we were unable to perform the 
procedures we considered necessary.  

Qualified Conclusion 

Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that 
the accompanying financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, (or do not 
give a true and fair view of) the financial position of ABC Company as at December 31, 20X1, 
and (of) its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
[name of applicable financial reporting framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or 
country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework 
used is not International Financial Reporting Standards].  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Form and content of this section of the practitioner’s report will vary depending on the nature 
of the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  
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Illustration 4 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of consolidated general purpose financial statements prepared by management of the 
parent in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 The financial statements are materially misstated due to the non-consolidation of a subsidiary. 
The material misstatement is deemed to be pervasive to the financial statements. The effects 
of the misstatement on the financial statements have not been determined because it was not 
practicable to do so. 

 The practitioner does not have other reporting responsibilities under local law in addition to 
the review of the consolidated financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,3 and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review 
Engagements (ISRE) 2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. 
ISRE 2400 (Revised) requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that 
causes us to believe that the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, are not 
prepared in all material respects in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework. This Standard also requires us to comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of consolidated financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited 
assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making 
inquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical 
procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.  

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.  
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Basis for Adverse Conclusion 

As explained in Note X, the company has not consolidated the financial statements of subsidiary 
XYZ Company it acquired during 20X1 because it has not yet been able to ascertain the fair 
values of certain of the subsidiary’s material assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. This 
investment is therefore accounted for on a cost basis. Under International Financial Reporting 
Standards, the subsidiary should have been consolidated because it is controlled by the company. 
Had XYZ been consolidated, many elements in the accompanying financial statements would 
have been materially affected.  

Adverse Conclusion 

Based on our review, due to the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse 
Conclusion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements do not present fairly (or do not give 
a true and fair view of) the financial position of ABC Company and its subsidiaries as at December 
31, 20X1, and (of) their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

[Form and content of this section of the practitioner’s report will vary depending on the nature 
of the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  
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Illustration 5 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of a complete set of general purpose financial statements prepared by management of 
the entity in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 The practitioner was unable to form a conclusion on the financial statements, due to inability 
to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about multiple elements of the financial statements, 
and the practitioner believes the effect is material and pervasive to the financial statements. 
Specifically, the practitioner was unable to obtain evidence about the entity’s physical 
inventory and accounts receivable. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

We were engaged to review the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 20X1, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards2 and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. Because 
of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Conclusion paragraph, however, we 
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence as a basis for expressing a conclusion on 
the financial statements. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Conclusion 

Management did not conduct a count of physical inventory on hand at the end of the year. We 
were unable to perform the procedures we considered necessary concerning the inventory 
quantities held at December 31, 20X1, which are stated at xxx in the statement of financial 
position at December 31, 20X1. 

In addition, the introduction of a new computerized accounts receivable system in September 
20X1 resulted in numerous errors in accounts receivable and inventory. As of the date of our 
report, management was still in the process of rectifying the system deficiencies and correcting 
the errors. As a result of these matters, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been found necessary in respect of recorded or unrecorded inventories and accounts 
receivable, and the elements making up the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 
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Disclaimer of Conclusion 

Due to the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Conclusion 
paragraph, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to form a conclusion on 
the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express a conclusion on these 
financial statements. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

Practitioner’s address]  
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Illustration 6 

Circumstances include the following: 

 The financial statements have been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of a contract (that is, a special purpose framework), to 
comply with the provisions of the contract. Management does not have a choice of financial 
reporting frameworks. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a compliance framework. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statements in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 Distribution or use of the practitioner’s report is restricted. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company, which comprise the 
balance sheet as at December 31, 20X1, and the income statement, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. The financial statements have been prepared by 
management of ABC Company based on the financial reporting provisions of Section Z of the 
contract dated January 1, 20X1 between ABC Company and DEF Company (“the contract”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of Section Z of the contract, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements. We 
conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 
2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) 
requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance 
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of 
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these 
financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial 
reporting provisions of Section Z of the contract. 
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Basis of Accounting, and Restriction on Distribution and Use 

Without modifying our conclusion, we draw attention to Note X to the financial statements, 
which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist ABC 
Company to comply with the financial reporting provisions of the contract referred to above. As 
a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended 
solely for ABC Company and DEF Company and should not be distributed to or used by parties 
other than ABC Company or DEF Company. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  
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Illustration 7 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Review of a statement of cash receipts and disbursements  

 The financial statement has been prepared by management of the entity in accordance with 
the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting to respond to a request for cash flow 
information received from a creditor. The basis of accounting applied to prepare the financial 
statement has been agreed between the entity and the creditor.  

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a fair presentation framework designed to 
meet the financial information needs of specific users. 

 The practitioner has determined that it is appropriate to use the phrase “presents fairly, in all 
material respects,” in the practitioner’s conclusion. 

 The terms of the review engagement reflect the description of management’s responsibility 
for the financial statement in paragraph 30(b) of this ISRE. 

 Distribution or use of the practitioner’s report is not restricted. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REVIEW REPORT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of cash receipts and disbursements of ABC 
Company for the year ended December 31, 20X1, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (together “the financial statement”). The financial 
statement has been prepared by management of ABC Company using the cash receipts and 
disbursements basis of accounting described in Note X. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement 
in accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting described in Note 
X, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Practitioner’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statement. We 
conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (ISRE) 
2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) 
requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the financial statement is not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to comply with relevant 
ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance 
engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of 
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion on this financial statement.  
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Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
financial statement does not present fairly, in all material respects, (or does not give a true and 
fair view of) the cash receipts and disbursements of ABC Company for the year ended December 
31, 20X1 in accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting described 
in Note X. 

Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying our conclusion, we draw attention to Note X to the financial statement, which 
describes the basis of accounting. The financial statement is prepared to provide information to 
XYZ Creditor. As a result, the financial statement may not be suitable for another purpose.  

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]
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REVIEW REPORT FORMATS PROVIDED UNDER ISRE 2410 
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ISRE 2410, REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION PERFORMED BY THE 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR OF THE ENTITY 

Complete Set of General Purpose Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with a 
Financial Reporting Framework Designed to Achieve Fair Presentation [see paragraph 43(i)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 20X1 and the 
related statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month period then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial 
information in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. Our 
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other 
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying interim financial information does not give a true and fair view of (or “does not 
present fairly, in all material respects,”) the financial position of the entity as at March 31, 
20X1, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the three-month period then ended 
in accordance with [applicable financial reporting framework, including a reference to the 
jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting 
framework used is not International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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Other Interim Financial Information [see paragraph 43(j)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying [condensed] balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 
20X1 and the related [condensed] statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for 
the three-month period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with [indicate applicable 
financial reporting framework]. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim 
financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other 
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with [applicable financial reporting framework, including a reference to the 
jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting 
framework used is not International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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Examples of Review Reports with a Qualified Conclusion for a Departure from 
the Applicable Financial Reporting Framework 

Complete Set of General Purpose Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with a 
Financial Reporting Framework Designed to Achieve Fair Presentation (Paragraph 43(i)) 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 20X1 and the 
related statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month period then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial 
information in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. Our 
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other 
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

Based on information provided to us by management, ABC Entity has excluded from property 
and long-term debt certain lease obligations that we believe should be capitalized to conform 
with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. This information indicates that if these 
lease obligations were capitalized at March 31, 20X1, property would be increased by $______, 
long-term debt by $______, and net income and earnings per share would be increased 
(decreased) by $________, $_________, $________, and $________, respectively for the three-
month period then ended. 

Qualified Conclusion 

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described in the preceding paragraph, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim 
financial information does not give a true and fair view of (or “does not present fairly, in all 
material respects,”) the financial position of the entity as at March 31, 20X1, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the three-month period then ended in accordance with 
[indicate applicable financial reporting framework, including the reference to the jurisdiction 
or country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework 
used is not International Financial Reporting Standards].  

AUDITOR 

Date 

Address 
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Other Interim Financial Information [see paragraph 43(j)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying [condensed] balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 
20X1 and the related [condensed] statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for 
the three-month period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with [indicate applicable 
financial reporting framework]. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim 
financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other 
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an 
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

Based on information provided to us by management, ABC Entity has excluded from property 
and long-term debt certain lease obligations that we believe should be capitalized to conform 
with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. This information indicates that if these 
lease obligations were capitalized at March 31, 20X1, property would be increased by $______, 
long-term debt by $______, and net income and earnings per share would be increased 
(decreased) by $________, $_________, $________, and $________, respectively for the three-
month period then ended. 

Qualified Conclusion 

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described in the preceding paragraph, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim 
financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [indicate 
applicable financial reporting framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or country of 
origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework used is not 
International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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Examples of Review Reports with a Qualified Conclusion for a limitation on 
scope not imposed by management 

Complete Set of General Purpose Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with a 
Financial Reporting Framework Designed to Achieve Fair Presentation [Paragraph 43(i)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 20X1 and the related 
statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month period then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with 
[indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this 
interim financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our review in accordance with 
International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, Review of Interim Financial Information 
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity. A review of interim financial information consists 
of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying 
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

As a result of a fire in a branch office on (date) that destroyed its accounts receivable records, we 
were unable to complete our review of accounts receivable totaling $________ included in the interim 
financial information. The entity is in the process of reconstructing these records and is uncertain as 
to whether these records will support the amount shown above and the related allowance for 
uncollectible accounts. Had we been able to complete our review of accounts receivable, matters 
might have come to our attention indicating that adjustments might be necessary to the interim 
financial information. 

Qualified Conclusion 

Except for the adjustments to the interim financial information that we might have become aware of 
had it not been for the situation described above, based on our review, nothing has come to our 
attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim financial information does not give 
a true and fair view of (or “does not present fairly, in all material respects,”) the financial position of 
the entity as at March 31, 20X1, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the three-month 
period then ended in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework, including a 
reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting framework when the 
financial reporting framework used is not International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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Other Interim Financial Information [see paragraph 43(j)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying [condensed] balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 
20X1 and the related [condensed] statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for 
the three-month period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with [indicate applicable 
financial reporting framework]. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim 
financial information based on our review.  

Scope of Review 

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our review in accordance with 
International Standards on Review Engagements 2410, Review of Interim Financial Information 
Performed by the Auditor of the Entity. A review of interim financial information consists of 
making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and 
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an 
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does 
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 

As a result of a fire in a branch office on (date) that destroyed its accounts receivable records, 
we were unable to complete our review of accounts receivable totaling $________ included in 
the interim financial information. The entity is in the process of reconstructing these records 
and is uncertain as to whether these records will support the amount shown above and the 
related allowance for uncollectible accounts. Had we been able to complete our review of 
accounts receivable, matters might have come to our attention indicating that adjustments 
might be necessary to the interim financial information. 

Qualified Conclusion 

Except for the adjustments to the interim financial information that we might have become 
aware of had it not been for the situation described above, based on our review, nothing has 
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim financial 
information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [indicate applicable 
financial reporting framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin of 
the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework used is not 
International Financial Reporting Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date 

Address 
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Examples of Review Reports with an Adverse Conclusion for a departure from 
the applicable financial reporting framework 

Complete Set of General Purpose Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with a 
Financial Reporting Framework Designed to Achieve Fair Presentation [Paragraph 43(i)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 20X1 and the related 
statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month period then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is responsible 
for the preparation and fair presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with 
[indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this 
interim financial information based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, 
Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Auditor of the Entity. A review of interim 
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and 
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less 
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Basis for Adverse Conclusion 

Commencing this period, management of the entity ceased to consolidate the financial statements of 
its subsidiary companies since management considers consolidation to be inappropriate because of the 
existence of new substantial non-controlling interests. This is not in accordance with [indicate 
applicable financial reporting framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin 
of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework used is not International 
Financial Reporting Standards]. Had consolidated financial statements been prepared, virtually every 
account in the interim financial information would have been materially different. 

Adverse Conclusion 

Our review indicates that, because the entity’s investment in subsidiary companies is not accounted 
for on a consolidated basis, as described in the preceding paragraph, this interim financial information 
does not give a true and fair view of (or “does not present fairly, in all material respects,”) the 
financial position of the entity as at March 31, 20X1, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the three-month period then ended in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting 
framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting 
framework when the financial reporting framework used is not International Financial Reporting 
Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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Other Interim Financial Information [see paragraph 43(j)] 

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information 

[Appropriate addressee] 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying [condensed] balance sheet of ABC Entity as of March 31, 20X1 
and the related [condensed] statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the three-
month period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this 
interim financial information in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting framework]. 
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review.  

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, 
Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independence Auditor of the Entity. A 
review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all 
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit 
opinion.  

Basis for Adverse Conclusion 

Commencing this period, management of the entity ceased to consolidate the financial statements of 
its subsidiary companies since management considers consolidation to be inappropriate because of the 
existence of new substantial non-controlling interests. This is not in accordance with [indicate 
applicable financial reporting framework, including the reference to the jurisdiction or country of 
origin of the financial reporting framework when the financial reporting framework used is not 
International Financial Reporting Standards]. Had consolidated financial statements been prepared, 
virtually every account in the interim financial information would have been materially different.  

Adverse Conclusion 

Our review indicates that, because the entity’s investment in subsidiary companies is not accounted 
for on a consolidated basis, as described in the preceding paragraph, this interim financial information 
is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [indicate applicable financial reporting 
framework, including a reference to the jurisdiction or country of origin of the financial reporting 
framework when the financial reporting framework used is not International Financial Reporting 
Standards]. 

AUDITOR 

Date  

Address 
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ISAE 3402, ASSURANCE REPORTS ON CONTROLS AT A SERVICE ORGANISATION 

Illustration 1: Type 2 Service Auditor’s Assurance Report 

 

Independent Service Auditor’s Assurance Report on the 
Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness 

[To: XYZ Service Organization] 

Scope 

We have been engaged to report on XYZ Service Organization’s description at pages [bb–cc] of its [type 
or name of] system for processing customers’ transactions throughout the period [date] to [date] (the 
description), and on the design and operation of controls related to the control objectives stated in 
the description.1 

XYZ Service Organization’s Responsibilities 

XYZ Service Organization is responsible for: preparing the description and accompanying statement at 
page [aa], including the completeness, accuracy and method of presentation of the description and 
statement; providing the services covered by the description; stating the control objectives; and 
designing, implementing and effectively operating controls to achieve the stated control objectives. 

Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, which is 
founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, 
confidentiality and professional behavior. 

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 12 and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding 
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements. 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on XYZ Service Organization’s description and on the design 
and operation of controls related to the control objectives stated in that description based on our 
procedures. We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance 
Engagements 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service Organization, issued by the 
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and 
perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether, in all material respects, the 
description is fairly presented and the controls are suitably designed and operating effectively. 

An assurance engagement to report on the description, design and operating effectiveness of controls 
at a service organization involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the disclosures in 
the service organization’s description of its system, and the design and operating effectiveness of 
controls. The procedures selected depend on the service auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks that the description is not fairly presented, and that controls are not suitably designed or 
operating effectively. Our procedures included testing the operating effectiveness of those controls 
that we consider necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives stated in the 
description were achieved. An assurance engagement of this type also includes evaluating the overall 
presentation of the description, the suitability of the objectives stated therein, and the suitability of 
the criteria specified by the service organization and described at page [aa]. 
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We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  

Limitations of Controls at a Service Organization  

XYZ Service Organization’s description is prepared to meet the common needs of a broad range of 
customers and their auditors and may not, therefore, include every aspect of the system that each 
individual customer may consider important in its own particular environment. Also, because of their 
nature, controls at a service organization may not prevent or detect all errors or omissions in processing 
or reporting transactions. Also, the projection of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods is 
subject to the risk that controls at a service organization may become inadequate or fail. 

Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria we used 
in forming our opinion are those described at page [aa]. In our opinion, in all material respects: 

(a) The description fairly presents the [the type or name of] system as designed and implemented 
throughout the period from [date] to [date]; 

(b) The controls related to the control objectives stated in the description were suitably designed 
throughout the period from [date] to [date]; and 

(c) The controls tested, which were those necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the 
control objectives stated in the description were achieved, operated effectively throughout 
the period from [date] to [date]. 

Description of Tests of Controls  

The specific controls tested and the nature, timing and results of those tests are listed on pages [yy–zz]. 

Intended Users and Purpose 

This report and the description of tests of controls on pages [yy–zz] are intended only for customers 
who have used XYZ Service Organization’s [type or name of] system, and their auditors, who have a 
sufficient understanding to consider it, along with other information including information about 
controls operated by customers themselves, when assessing the risks of material misstatements of 
customers’ financial statements.  

[Service auditor’s signature] 

[Date of the service auditor’s assurance report] 

[Service auditor’s address]  

_________________________ 

1 If some elements of the description are not included in the scope of the engagement, this is 
made clear in the assurance report.  

2 ISQC 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and 
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements 
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Illustration 2: Type 1 Service Auditor’s Assurance Report  

Independent Service Auditor’s Assurance Report on the Description of Controls and their Design 

[To: XYZ Service Organization] 

Scope 

We have been engaged to report on XYZ Service Organization’s description at pages [bb–cc] of 
its [type or name of] system for processing customers’ transactions as at [date] (the description), 
and on the design of controls related to the control objectives stated in the description. 

We did not perform any procedures regarding the operating effectiveness of controls included 
in the description and, accordingly, do not express an opinion thereon. 

XYZ Service Organization’s Responsibilities 

XYZ Service Organization is responsible for: preparing the description and accompanying 
statement at page [aa], including the completeness, accuracy and method of presentation of 
the description and the statement; providing the services covered by the description; stating 
the control objectives; and designing, implementing and effectively operating controls to 
achieve the stated control objectives.  

Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, 
which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence 
and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior. 

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures 
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements. 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on XYZ Service Organization’s description and on the 
design of controls related to the control objectives stated in that description, based on our 
procedures. We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service Organization, issued 
by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we 
plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether, in all material 
respects, the description is fairly presented and the controls are suitably designed in all material 
respects. 

An assurance engagement to report on the description and design of controls at a service 
organization involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the disclosures in the 
service organization’s description of its system, and the design of controls. The procedures 
selected depend on the service auditor’s judgment, including the assessment that the 
description is not fairly presented, and that controls are not suitably designed. An assurance 
engagement of this type also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the description, the 
suitability of the control objectives stated therein, and the suitability of the criteria specified 
by the service organization and described at page [aa]. 

As noted above, we did not perform any procedures regarding the operating effectiveness of 
controls included in the description and, accordingly, do not express an opinion thereon.  
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We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  

Limitations of Controls at a Service Organization 

XYZ Service Organization’s description is prepared to meet the common needs of a broad range 
of customers and their auditors and may not, therefore, include every aspect of the system that 
each individual customer may consider important in its own particular environment. Also, 
because of their nature, controls at a service organization may not prevent or detect all errors 
or omissions in processing or reporting transactions.  

Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria we 
used in forming our opinion are those described at page [aa]. In our opinion, in all material 
respects:  

(a) The description fairly presents the [the type or name of] system as designed and 
implemented as at [date]; and 

(b) The controls related to the control objectives stated in the description were suitably 
designed as at [date]. 

Intended Users and Purpose 

This report is intended only for customers who have used XYZ Service Organization’s [type or 
name of] system, and their auditors, who have a sufficient understanding to consider it, along 
with other information including information about controls operated by customers themselves, 
when obtaining an understanding of customers’ information systems relevant to financial 
reporting. 

[Service auditor’s signature] 

[Date of the service auditor’s assurance report] 

[Service auditor’s address] 
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Illustrations of Modified Service Auditor’s Assurance Reports 

Illustration 1: Qualified opinion – the service organization’s description of the system is not 
fairly presented in all material respects  

… 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

… 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The accompanying description states at page [mn] that XYZ Service Organization uses operator 
identification numbers and passwords to prevent unauthorized access to the system. Based on 
our procedures, which included inquiries of staff personnel and observation of activities, we 
have determined that operator identification numbers and passwords are employed in 
Applications A and B but not in Applications C and D. 

Qualified Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria we 
used in forming our opinion were those described in XYZ Service Organization’s statement at 
page [aa]. In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph:  

(a) … 

Illustration 2: Qualified opinion – the controls are not suitably designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that the control objectives stated in the service organization’s 
description of its system will be achieved if the controls operate effectively 

… 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

… 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As discussed at page [mn] of the accompanying description, from time to time XYZ Service 
Organization makes changes in application programs to correct deficiencies or to enhance 
capabilities. The procedures followed in determining whether to make changes, in designing 
the changes and in implementing them, do not include review and approval by authorized 
individuals who are independent from those involved in making the changes. There are also no 
specified requirements to test such changes or provide test results to an authorized reviewer 
prior to implementing the changes. 

Qualified Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria 
we used in forming our opinion were those described in XYZ Service Organization’s statement 
at page [aa]. In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph: 

(a) …  
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Illustration 3: Qualified opinion – the controls did not operate effectively throughout the 
specified period (type 2 report only) 

… 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

… 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

XYZ Service Organization states in its description that it has automated controls in place to 
reconcile loan payments received with the output generated. However, as noted at page [mn] 
of the description, this control was not operating effectively during the period from dd/mm/yyyy 
to dd/mm/yyyy due to a programming error. This resulted in the non-achievement of the control 
objective “Controls provide reasonable assurance that loan payments received are properly 
recorded” during the period from dd/mm/yyyy to dd/mm/yyyy. XYZ implemented a change to 
the program performing the calculation as of [date], and our tests indicate that it was operating 
effectively during the period from dd/mm/yyyy to dd/mm/yyyy.  

Qualified Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria we 
used in forming our opinion were those described in XYZ Service Organization’s statement at 
page [aa]. In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph:  

… 

Illustration 4: Qualified opinion – the service auditor is unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate evidence 

… 

Service Auditor’s Responsibilities 

… 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified opinion.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

XYZ Service Organization states in its description that it has automated controls in place to 
reconcile loan payments received with the output generated. However, electronic records of 
the performance of this reconciliation for the period from dd/mm/yyyy to dd/mm/yyyy were 
deleted as a result of a computer processing error, and we were therefore unable to test the 
operation of this control for that period. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether 
the control objective “Controls provide reasonable assurance that loan payments received are 
properly recorded” operated effectively during the period from dd/mm/yyyy to dd/mm/yyyy. 

Qualified Opinion 

Our opinion has been formed on the basis of the matters outlined in this report. The criteria we 
used in forming our opinion were those described in XYZ Service Organization’s statement at 
page [aa]. In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph:  

(a) …
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ISAE 3410, ASSURANCE ENGAGEMENTS ON GREENHOUSE GAS STATEMENTS  
 

Illustration 1: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Reasonable assurance engagement. 

 The entity’s GHG statement contains no Scope 3 emissions. 

 The entity’s GHG statement contains no emissions deductions. 

 The GHG statement contains no comparative information. 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT ON ABC’S GREENHOUSE 
GAS (GHG) STATEMENT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on GHG Statement (this heading is not needed if this is the only section) 

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement of the accompanying GHG statement 
of ABC for the year ended December 31, 20X1, comprising the Emissions Inventory and the 
Explanatory Notes on pages xx–yy. [This engagement was conducted by a multidisciplinary team 
including assurance practitioners, engineers and environmental scientists.]1 

ABC’s Responsibility for the GHG Statement 

ABC is responsible for the preparation of the GHG statement in accordance with [applicable 
criteria2], applied as explained in Note 1 to the GHG statement. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of a 
GHG statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

[As discussed in Note 1 to the GHG statement,]3 GHG quantification is subject to inherent 
uncertainty because of incomplete scientific knowledge used to determine emissions factors and 
the values needed to combine emissions of different gases.  

Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, 
which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence 
and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior. 

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 14 and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures 
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements.  

Our Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the GHG statement based on the evidence we have 
obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with International 
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3410, Assurance Engagements on Greenhouse Gas 
Statements (“ISAE 3410”), issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 
That standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the GHG statement is free from material misstatement. 

A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3410 involves performing 
procedures to obtain evidence about the quantification of emissions and related information in 
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the GHG statement. The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend on the 
practitioner’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, in the GHG statement. In making those risk assessments, we 
considered internal control relevant to ABC’s preparation of the GHG statement. A reasonable 
assurance engagement also includes: 

 Assessing the suitability in the circumstances of ABC’s use of [applicable criteria], applied 
as explained in Note 1 to the GHG statement, as the basis for preparing the GHG statement;  

 Evaluating the appropriateness of quantification methods and reporting policies used, and 
the reasonableness of estimates made by ABC; and 

 Evaluating the overall presentation of the GHG statement. 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the GHG statement for the year ended December 31, 20X1 is prepared, in all 
material respects, in accordance with the [applicable criteria] applied as explained in Note 1 to 
the GHG statement. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (applicable for some engagements only) 

[Form and content of this section of the assurance report will vary depending on the nature of 
the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the assurance report] 

[Practitioner’s address] 

___________________________________________ 

1  The sentence should be deleted if it is not applicable to the engagement (for example, if the 
engagement was to report only on Scope 2 emissions and no other experts were used).  

2  [Applicable criteria] are available for free download from www.######.org. 

3  Where there is no discussion of the inherent uncertainty in Note 1 to the GHG statement, this 
should be deleted.  

4  ISQC 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, 
and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.  
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Illustration 2: 

Circumstances include the following: 

 Limited assurance engagement. 

 The entity’s GHG statement contains no Scope 3 emissions. 

 The entity’s GHG statement contains no emissions deductions. 

 The GHG statement contains no comparative information 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT ON ABC’S GREENHOUSE GAS 
(GHG) STATEMENT 

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on GHG Statement (this heading is not needed if this is the only section) 

We have undertaken a limited assurance engagement of the accompanying GHG statement of 
ABC for the year ended December 31, 20X1, comprising the Emissions Inventory [and the 
Explanatory Notes on pages xx–yy]. [This engagement was conducted by a multidisciplinary team 
including assurance practitioners, engineers and environmental scientists.]1 

ABC’s Responsibility for the GHG Statement 

ABC is responsible for the preparation of the GHG statement in accordance with [applicable 
criteria2], applied as explained in Note 1 to the GHG statement. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of a 
GHG statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

[As discussed in Note 1 to the GHG statement,]3 GHG quantification is subject to inherent 
uncertainty because of incomplete scientific knowledge used to determine emissions factors and 
the values needed to combine emissions of different gases.  

Our Independence and Quality Control  

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, 
which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence 
and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior. 

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 14 and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures 
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements.  

Our Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the GHG statement based on 
the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained. We conducted our 
limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance 
Engagements 3410, Assurance Engagements on Greenhouse Gas Statements (“ISAE 3410”), issued 
by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we 
plan and perform this engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the GHG statement 
is free from material misstatement. 

A limited assurance engagement undertaken in accordance with ISAE 3410 involves assessing the 
suitability in the circumstances of ABC’s use of [applicable criteria] as the basis for the 
preparation of the GHG statement, assessing the risks of material misstatement of the GHG 
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statement whether due to fraud or error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the 
circumstances, and evaluating the overall presentation of the GHG statement. A limited 
assurance engagement is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in 
relation to both the risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of internal control, 
and the procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.  

The procedures we performed were based on our professional judgment and included inquiries, 
observation of processes performed, inspection of documents, analytical procedures, evaluating 
the appropriateness of quantification methods and reporting policies, and agreeing or 
reconciling with underlying records. 

[[The practitioner may insert a summary of the nature and extent of procedures 
performed that, in the practitioner’s judgment, provides additional information that may 
be relevant to the users’ understanding of the basis for the practitioner’s conclusion.5 

The following section has been provided as guidance, and the example procedures are not 
an exhaustive list of either the type, or extent, of the procedures which may be important 
for the users’ understanding of the work done.]6 

Given the circumstances of the engagement, in performing the procedures listed above we: 

 Through inquiries, obtained an understanding of ABC’s control environment and 
information systems relevant to emissions quantification and reporting, but did not 
evaluate the design of particular control activities, obtain evidence about their 
implementation or test their operating effectiveness. 

 Evaluated whether ABC’s methods for developing estimates are appropriate and had been 
consistently applied. However, our procedures did not include testing the data on which 
the estimates are based or separately developing our own estimates against which to 
evaluate ABC’s estimates.  

 Undertook site visits [at three sites] to assess the completeness of the emissions sources, 
data collection methods, source data and relevant assumptions applicable to the sites. 
The sites selected for testing were chosen taking into consideration their emissions in 
relation to total emissions, emissions sources, and sites selected in prior periods. Our 
procedures [did/did not] include testing information systems to collect and aggregate 
facility data, or the controls at these sites.]7 

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, 
and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of 
assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance 
that would have been obtained had we performed a reasonable assurance engagement. 
Accordingly, we do not express a reasonable assurance opinion about whether ABC’s GHG 
statement has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the [applicable 
criteria] applied as explained in Note 1 to the GHG statement.  

Limited Assurance Conclusion 

Based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has 
come to our attention that causes us to believe that ABC’s GHG statement for the year ended 
December 31, 20X1 is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the [applicable 
criteria] applied as explained in Note 1 to the GHG statement.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (applicable for some engagements only) 

[Form and content of this section of the assurance report will vary depending on the nature of 
the practitioner’s other reporting responsibilities.]  
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[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the assurance report] 

[Practitioner’s address] 

___________________________ 

1  The sentence should be deleted if it is not applicable to the engagement (for example, if the 
engagement was to report only on Scope 2 emissions and no other experts were used). 

2  [Applicable criteria] are available for free download from www.######.org. 

3  Where there is no discussion of the inherent uncertainty in Note 1 to the GHG statement, this 
should be deleted. 

4  ISQC 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, 
and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

5  The procedures are to be summarized but not to the extent that they are ambiguous, nor 
described in a way that is overstated or embellished or that implies that reasonable 
assurance has been obtained. It is important that the description of the procedures does not 
give the impression that an agreed-upon procedures engagement has been undertaken, and 
in most cases will not detail the entire work plan. 

6  In the final report, this explanatory paragraph will be deleted. 

7  This section should be deleted if the practitioner concludes that the expanded information 
on the procedures performed is not needed in the circumstances of the engagement.
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ISAE 3420, ASSURANCE ENGAGEMENTS TO REPORT ON COMPILATION OF PRO 
FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION INCLUDED IN PROSPECTUS 

 

Illustrative Practitioner’s Report with an Unmodified Opinion 

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE COMPILATION OF PRO FORMA 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION INCLUDED IN A PROSPECTUS  

[Appropriate Addressee] 

Report on the Compilation of Pro Forma Financial Information Included in a Prospectus 

We have completed our assurance engagement to report on the compilation of pro forma 
financial information of ABC Company by [the responsible party]. The pro forma financial 
information consists of [the pro forma net asset statement as at [date]], [the pro forma income 
statement for the period ended [date]], [the pro forma cash flow statement for the period ended 
[date]], and related notes [as set out on pages xx–xx of the prospectus issued by the company]. 
The applicable criteria on the basis of which [the responsible party] has compiled the pro forma 
financial information are [specified in [Securities Regulation XX] and described in [Note X]]. 

The pro forma financial information has been compiled by [the responsible party] to illustrate 
the impact of the [event or transaction] [set out in Note X] on the [company’s financial position 
as at specify date] [and] [the company’s/its financial performance [and cash flows] for the 
period ended specify date] as if the [event or transaction] had taken place at [specify date] [and 
specify date respectively]. As part of this process, information about the company’s [financial 
position], [financial performance] [and cash flows] has been extracted by [the responsible party] 
from the company’s financial statements [for the period ended [date]], on which [[an audit]/[a 
review] report]/[no audit or review report]] has been published.1 

[The Responsible Party’s] Responsibility for the Pro Forma Financial Information 

[The responsible party] is responsible for compiling the pro forma financial information on the 
basis of the [applicable criteria].  

Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirement of the Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, 
which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence 
and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior. 

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 12 and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures 
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements. 

Practitioner’s Responsibilities 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion [, as required by [Securities Regulation XX],] about 
whether the pro forma financial information has been compiled, in all material respects, by [the 
responsible party] on the basis of the [applicable criteria].  

We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 
(ISAE) 3420, Assurance Engagements to Report on the Compilation of Pro Forma Financial Information 
Included in a Prospectus, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. This 
standard requires that the practitioner plan and perform procedures to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether [the responsible party] has compiled, in all material respects, the pro forma financial 
information on the basis of the [applicable criteria].  
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For purposes of this engagement, we are not responsible for updating or reissuing any reports or 
opinions on any historical financial information used in compiling the pro forma financial information, 
nor have we, in the course of this engagement, performed an audit or review of the financial 
information used in compiling the pro forma financial information.  

The purpose of pro forma financial information included in a prospectus is solely to illustrate the impact 
of a significant event or transaction on unadjusted financial information of the entity as if the event 
had occurred or the transaction had been undertaken at an earlier date selected for purposes of the 
illustration. Accordingly, we do not provide any assurance that the actual outcome of the event or 
transaction at [specify date] would have been as presented. 

A reasonable assurance engagement to report on whether the pro forma financial information has been 
compiled, in all material respects, on the basis of the applicable criteria involves performing 
procedures to assess whether the applicable criteria used by [the responsible party] in the compilation 
of the pro forma financial information provide a reasonable basis for presenting the significant effects 
directly attributable to the event or transaction, and to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about 
whether:  

 The related pro forma adjustments give appropriate effect to those criteria; and 

 The pro forma financial information reflects the proper application of those adjustments to the 
unadjusted financial information. 

The procedures selected depend on the practitioner’s judgment, having regard to the practitioner’s 
understanding of the nature of the company, the event or transaction in respect of which the pro forma 
financial information has been compiled, and other relevant engagement circumstances. 

The engagement also involves evaluating the overall presentation of the pro forma financial 
information. 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

In our opinion, [the pro forma financial information has been compiled, in all material respects, on the 
basis of the [applicable criteria]]/[the pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on 
the basis stated]. 

Report on Other Legal or Regulatory Requirements 

[Relevant law or regulation may require the practitioner to express an opinion on other matters (see 
paragraphs A46–A47). The form and content of this section of the practitioner’s report will vary with 
the nature of such other reporting responsibilities.] 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address] 

_______________________________________________ 

1  Where the audit or review report has been modified, reference may be made to where the 
modification has been described in the prospectus. 

2  ISQC 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and 
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.
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ISRS 4400, ENGAGEMENTS TO PERFORM AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REGARDING 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Illustration of a Report of Factual Findings in Connection with Accounts Payable 

Report of Factual Findings 

To (those who engaged the auditor) 

We have performed the procedures agreed with you and enumerated below with respect to the accounts 
payable of ABC Company as at (date), set forth in the accompanying schedules (not shown in this 
example). Our engagement was undertaken in accordance with the International Standard on Related 
Services (or refer to relevant national standards or practices) applicable to agreed-upon procedures 
engagements. The procedures were performed solely to assist you in evaluating the validity of the 
accounts payable and are summarized as follows: 

1. We obtained and checked the addition of the trial balance of accounts payable as at (date) prepared 
by ABC Company, and we compared the total to the balance in the related general ledger account. 

2. We compared the attached list (not shown in this example) of major suppliers and the amounts 
owing at (date) to the related names and amounts in the trial balance. 

3. We obtained suppliers’ statements or requested suppliers to confirm balances owing at (date). 

4. We compared such statements or confirmations to the amounts referred to in 2. For amounts which 
did not agree, we obtained reconciliations from ABC Company. For reconciliations obtained, we 
identified and listed outstanding invoices, credit notes and outstanding checks, each of which was 
greater than xxx. We located and examined such invoices and credit notes subsequently received 
and checks subsequently paid and we ascertained that they should in fact have been listed as 
outstanding on the reconciliations. 

We report our findings below: 

(a) With respect to item 1 we found the addition to be correct and the total amount to be in agreement. 

(b) With respect to item 2 we found the amounts compared to be in agreement. 

(c) With respect to item 3 we found there were suppliers’ statements for all such suppliers. 

(d) With respect to item 4 we found the amounts agreed, or with respect to amounts which did not 
agree, we found ABC Company had prepared reconciliations and that the credit notes, invoices and 
outstanding checks over xxx were appropriately listed as reconciling items with the following 
exceptions: 

(Detail the exceptions) 

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review Engagements (or relevant 
national standards or practices), we do not express any assurance on the accounts payable as of (date). 

Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the financial 
statements in accordance with International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review 
Engagements (or relevant national standards or practices), other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 

Our report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first paragraph of this report and for your information 
and is not to be used for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties. This report relates 
only to the accounts and items specified above and does not extend to any financial statements of ABC 
Company, taken as a whole. 

AUDITOR 
Date 
Address
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ISRS 4410, COMPILATION ENGAGEMENTS (REVISED) 

Illustrative Practitioners’ Compilation Reports 

Compilation Engagement for General Purpose Financial Statements 

 Illustration 1: Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using 
a general purpose financial reporting framework. 

Compilation Engagement for Financial Statements Prepared for a Special Purpose 

 Illustration 2: Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using 
a modified general purpose financial reporting framework. 

Compilation Engagements for Financial Information Prepared for a Special Purpose where 
Use or Distribution of the Financial Information Is Restricted to the Intended Users 

 Illustration 3: Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using 
the basis of accounting specified in a contract. 

 Illustration 4: Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using 
a basis of accounting selected by the management of an entity for financial information 
required for management’s own purposes. 

 Illustration 5: Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial information that 
is an element, account or item, being [insert appropriate reference to information required 
for a regulatory compliance purpose]. 
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PRACTITIONER’S COMPILATION REPORT 

[To Management of ABC Company] 

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company based on information 
you have provided. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial position of 
ABC Company as at December 31, 20X1, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements. 

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the 
preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small- and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs). We have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements, including principles of integrity, objectivity, 
professional competence and due care. 

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to 
compile them are your responsibility. 

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify 
the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these financial 
statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether 
these financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS for SMEs. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  

Illustration 1:  

Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using a general 
purpose financial reporting framework. 

 General purpose financial statements required under applicable law that specifies that the 
entity’s financial statements are to be prepared applying International Financial Reporting 
Standards for Small- and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs). 
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Illustration 2:  

Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using a modified 
general purpose financial reporting framework. 

 Financial statements prepared using a general purpose financial reporting framework adopted 
by management on a modified basis. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is International Financial Reporting Standards for 
Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs) excluding the treatment of property, which 
has been revalued rather than being carried at historical cost. 

 Use or distribution of the financial statements is not restricted. 

PRACTITIONER’S COMPILATION REPORT 

[To Management of ABC Company] 

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company based on information 
you have provided. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial position of 
ABC Company as at December 31, 20X1, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements. 

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the 
preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of accounting described 
in Note X to the financial statements. We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, 
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care. 

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to 
compile them are your responsibility. 

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify 
the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these financial 
statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether 
these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting described in 
Note X. 

As stated in Note X, the financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards for Small- and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs), 
excluding property which is revalued in the financial statements rather than being carried at 
historical cost. The financial statements are prepared for the purpose described in Note Y to the 
financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements may not be suitable for other 
purposes. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 224 of 233 

 

ISRS 4410 (Revised)  

Illustration 3:  

Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using the basis of 
accounting specified in a contract. 

 Financial statements prepared to comply with the provisions of a contract, applying the basis 
of accounting specified in the contract. 

 The practitioner is engaged by a party other than management or those charged with 
governance of the entity. 

 The financial statements are intended for use only by the parties specified in the contract. 

 Distribution and use of the practitioner’s report is restricted to the intended users of the 
financial statements specified in the contract. 

PRACTITIONER’S COMPILATION REPORT 

[To the Engaging Party] 

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company (“the Company”) 
based on information provided by the management of the Company (“management”). These 
financial statements comprise [name all the elements of the financial statements prepared 
under the basis of accounting specified in the Contract and the period/date to which they 
relate]. 
 
We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements. 
 
We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist management in the 
preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of accounting described 
in Note X to the financial statements. We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, 
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care. 
 
These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to 

compile them are management’s responsibility.  

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify 
the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us by management to compile these 
financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on 
whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting 
described in Note X. 
 
As stated in Note X, the financial statements are prepared and presented on the basis described 
in Clause Z of the provisions of the Company’s contract with XYZ Limited dated [insert date of 
the relevant contract/agreement] (“the Contract”), and for the purpose described in Note Y to 
the financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements are intended for use only by 
the parties specified in the Contract, and may not be suitable for other purposes.  
 
Our compilation report is intended solely for the parties specified in the Contract, and should 
not be distributed to other parties. 
 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address] 
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PRACTITIONER’S COMPILATION REPORT 

[To Management of ABC Company] 

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of ABC Company based on information 
you have provided. These financial statements comprise the balance sheet of ABC Company as 
at December 31, 20X1 and an income statement for the year then ended. 

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements. 

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the 
preparation and presentation of these financial statements on the basis of accounting described 
in Note X to the financial statements. We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, 
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care. 

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to 
compile them are your responsibility. 

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify 
the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these financial 
statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether 
these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting described in 
Note X. 

Note X states the basis on which these financial statements are prepared, and their purpose is 
described in Note Y. Accordingly, these financial statements are for your use only, and may not 
be suitable for other purposes. 

Our compilation report is intended solely for your use in your capacity as management of ABC 
Company, and should not be distributed to other parties. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]  

Illustration 4:  

Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial statements using a basis of 
accounting selected by management of an entity for financial information required for 
management’s own purposes. 

 Financial statements prepared using a special purpose financial reporting framework, 
intended for use only by the management of a company for management’s own purposes. 

 The financial statements incorporate certain accruals, and comprise only a balance sheet, 
an income statement, and a single note that refers to the basis of accounting used for the 
financial statements. 

 The financial statements are intended for use only by management.  

 Distribution and use of the practitioner’s report is restricted to management. 
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Illustration 5:  

Practitioner’s report for an engagement to compile financial information that is an element, 
account or item, being [insert appropriate reference to information required for a regulatory 
compliance purpose]. 

 Financial information prepared for a special purpose, i.e., to comply with financial reporting 
requirements established by a regulator, in accordance with provisions established by the 
regulator prescribing the form and content of the financial information. 

 The applicable financial reporting framework is a compliance framework. 

 The financial information is intended to meet the needs of particular users, and use of the 
financial information is restricted to those users. 

 Distribution of the practitioner’s report is restricted to the intended users. 

PRACTITIONER’S COMPILATION REPORT 

[To the Management of ABC Company] 

We have compiled the accompanying schedule of [identify the compiled financial information] of ABC 
Company as at December 31, 20X1 (“the Schedule”) based on information you have provided.  

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on Related 
Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements. 

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation 
and presentation of the Schedule as prescribed by [insert name of or reference to the relevant 
regulation]. We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, including principles of integrity, 
objectivity, professional competence and due care. 

This Schedule and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile it are your 
responsibility. 

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the 
accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile the Schedule. Accordingly, 
we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether the Schedule is prepared in 
accordance with [insert name of or reference to applicable financial reporting framework as specified 
in the relevant regulation]. 

As stated in Note X, the Schedule is prepared and presented on the basis prescribed by [insert name 
of or reference to the applicable financial reporting framework as specified in the relevant 
regulation], for the purpose of ABC Company’s compliance with [insert name of or reference to the 
relevant regulation] Accordingly, the Schedule is for use only in connection with that purpose and may 
not be suitable for any other purpose.  

Our compilation report is intended solely for the use of ABC Company and Regulator F, and should not 
be distributed to parties other than ABC Company or Regulator F. 

[Practitioner’s signature] 

[Date of the practitioner’s report] 

[Practitioner’s address]



 

 

REPORT FORMATS SPECIFIED 
UNDER COMPANIES RULES 1985 

(REPEALED)



 

From the Desk of Technical Services Page 228 of 233 

 

Auditor’s Report of a Company – Form 35A 

FORM 35A  
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 
[See section 255(3) and rule 17A]  

 
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of ------------------------------------------ ----------- as 
at -------------- and the related *1profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of 
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of 
internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the 
approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit. 

We conduct our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said 
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due 
verification, we report that— 

(a) In our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the company as required by the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984; 
 

(b) in our opinion— 
 

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the 
books of accounts and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied 
*2 except for the changes as stated in note(s) with which we concur; 

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and 
(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were 

in accordance with the objects of the company; 
 

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the balance sheet, *1 profits and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of 
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair 
view of the state of the company’s affairs as at -------------- and of the *3 profit/loss, its cash 
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and 

 
(d) In our opinion *4 Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 

of 1980), was deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established 
under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

Date Signature 

Place  [Name(s) of Auditors] 
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Notes: 

Where applicable— 

*1.  Substitute “income and expenditure account” in case of association not for profit. 

*2.  Where there is no change in the accounting policy(ies) the portion “except for the changes as 
stated in note(s) with which we concur” may be omitted. 

*3. Substitute “surplus or deficit” in case of association not for profit. 

*4. Where no Zakat is deductible, substitute “no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980”. 

Where any of the matter referred to in the Auditors’ Report is answered in the negative or with a 
qualification, the report shall state the reason for such answers along with the factual position to the 
best of the auditors’ information. 

In the case of a non-listed company reference to “cash flow statement or source and application of 
funds and statement of changes in equity and opinion thereon may be omitted”.
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FORM 35B 
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 
[See section 255(3) and rule 17B] 

 
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OR DIRECTORS IN CASE OF BRANCHES OF FOREIGN BANKS  

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of --------------------- Bank as at the 31st December 
----------, and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes 
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here in after referred to as the ‘financial 
statements’) for the year then ended, in which are incorporated the unaudited certified returns 
from the branches except for------- branches which have been audited by us and we state that 
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Bank’s Board of Directors/Management to establish and maintain a 
system of internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with 
approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 
(LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable 
in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing accounting policies and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due 
verification, which in case of loans and advances covered more than sixty per cent of the total 
loans and advances of the bank, we report that: —  

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the ------- Bank/branches as 
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and the returns referred to 
above received from the branches have been found adequate for the purposes of our audit;  
 

(b) in our opinion—  
 

1. the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and are in agreement with the books of 
account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied *1 
(except for the changes as stated in note(s) with which we concur); 
  

2. the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Bank’s/branches’ 
business; and  
 

3. the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year 
were in accordance with the objects of the Bank/branches and the transactions of the 
Bank/branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the 
Bank/branches;  

 
(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes 
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking 
Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 
1984), in the manner so required and give a true and fair view of the state of the 
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Bank’s/branches’ affairs as at the 31st December, and its true balance of the profit or loss, 
its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and  

 
(d) in our opinion 2Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 

of 1980), was deducted by the Bank/branches and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund 
established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

Date Signature  

Place Name(s) of Auditors)  

 

Notes: 

Where applicable— 

*1. Where there is no change in the accounting policy or policies the portion “except for changes as 
stated in note(s)--- with which we concur” may be deleted. 

*2. Where no Zakat is deductible, substitute “no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)”. 

*3. Any other matter which the auditor considers should be brought to the notice of the Members or 
Directors in case of foreign banks, should also be stated in the report. 

Where any of the matters referred to in the Auditor’s Report is answered in the negative or with a 
qualification, the report shall state the reason for such answers along with the factual position to the 
best of auditors’ information.
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FORM 35C 
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 

 [See rule 17C] 
 

AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated 
Balance Sheet of __________ and its subsidiary companies as at ______________ and the related 
consolidated Profit and Loss Account, consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then 
ended. We have also expressed separate opinions on the financial statements of ___________ 
and its subsidiary companies except for ________ and _______ which were audited by other 
firm(s) of auditors whose report(s) has/have been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts included for such company(ies), is based solely on the report(s) of such 
other auditors. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and 
accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
present fairly the financial position of __________ and its subsidiary companies as at __________ 
and the results of their operations for the year then ended. 

Signature 

(Name(s) of Auditors) 

Date ____________ 

Place ____________ 

 

Note: 

Where any of the matter referred to in the Auditors’ Report is answered in the negative or with a 
qualification, the report shall state the reason for such answers along with the factual position to the 
best of the auditor’s information.
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FORM 35D 
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 

 [See rule 17C] 
 

REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY 
 

We have reviewed the accompanying Balance Sheet of ______________ as at ____________, and 
the related Profit and Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity 
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the _______ months then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is 
to issue a report on these financial statements based on our review. 

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Auditing applicable 
to review engagements. This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain 
moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
A review is limited primarily to inquires of company personnel and analytical procedures applied 
to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying financial statements are not presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
accordance with approved accounting standards. 

Signature 

(Name(s) of Auditors) 

Date _____________ 

Place _____________ 

 

Note:  

Where any of the matter referred to in the Auditors’ Report is answered in the negative or with a 
qualification, the report shall state the reason for such answers along with the factual position to the 
best of the auditor’s information. 
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